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Directors and Senior Management
ESkEEEEAS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 64, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He
is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group’s
business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the

Group. He has more than 41 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 62, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a
co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and
administration of the Group. He has more than 4| years' experience in the plastics
industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional

Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 55, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is
in charge of the R&D centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities
and opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity,
Dr Wong was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and
Manufacturing Systems Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a
B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D degree in Chemical Engineering and is also a
Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a corporate member of The Institution of
Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He
had worked for two multinational chemical companies prior to taking up a lecturer

post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wah, aged 60, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr Lai
holds a Master of Arts degree and is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
the Law Society of England and Wales and the Law Society of Australian Capital
Territory. He has been practicing law for over 27 years. He is also an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, a Member of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Manager of three
secondary schools and one primary school in Hong Kong, and Member of the Panel

of Adjudicators of the Control of Obscene and Indecent Articles Ordinance.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 53, is responsible for personnel and office
administration of the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from The Open University of Hong Kong. She joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has more than 26 years’

experience in plastic materials trading.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Contd)

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 46, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department and Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group. He
is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology and
key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile
Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering Management
degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988 and
left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 22 years'

experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 60, is the sole proprietor of Paul W.C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in
Social Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 61, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic
Material Ltd. He has more than 30 years' experience in plastic trading. He was
formerly a lecturer of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic
University. He is now the President of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers
Association, President of Hong Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Vice President of
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre and Chairman of Hong Kong Brands
Protection Alliance. He has also been awarded the Chief Executive's Commendation

for Community Service.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management
ESkEEEEAS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont4d)

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 41, is the assistant to Chairman of a reputable real
estate company. He had been the Vice President - Finance for Hong Kong and China
Gas Investment Limited, a subsidiary of the Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited (BB P EHRRBR AT ), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, and was responsible for the overall financial management of its
joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China. Mr Ching had also been executive
director, finance director, company secretary and qualified accountant of the
Company. He has more than |9 years of experience in auditing, finance and
accounting. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from the Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006 respectively.
Mr Ching is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member

of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 56, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited and Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd,, and is responsible for the overall business operations of
the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ben Ng holds a Bachelor degree in
Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
("CUHK"). He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director of the
above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 30 years' experience in
plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ben Ng has held several key
positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales

and product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 40, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing
in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over |7 years’

experience in sales & marketing.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Contd)

Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 38, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of
Hong Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder
and a Certified Financial Risk Manager. He has over |5 years' experience in auditing,
finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial and treasury management

of the Group.

Mr YIP Chun Fai, aged 48, is the General Manger of Hong Kong Colour
Technology Ltd., Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Ltd. and Xiamen Ngai Hing
Hong Plastic Materials Co., Ltd.. He is responsible for the Group’s Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches in Southern China plus the overall
management of the Ngai Hing operations in Dongguan and Xiamen. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Science from The University of Hong Kong and Master degree in
Business & Administration from the University of Technology, Sydney. Mr Yip joined
the Group in 2009 and has over 26 years' experience in the petroleum, chemical
and textile industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Yip has held several senior
positions in various multinational companies for Business Management, Sales,
Marketing, New Business Development, Merger & Acquisition and Supply Chain

Management in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr CHENG Yuk Lun, Allen, aged 49, is the General Manager of Tsing Tao Ngai
Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He is responsible for sales, marketing, and product
development of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic
industries in Qingdao and Northern China Provinces plus the overall management
of the Tsing Tao Ngai Hing operations. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile
Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). Mr Cheng joined the Group in July 2010. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr Cheng has over 27 years' experience in printing ink and coating
industry and held several senior positions in various multinational companies for

business management, factory operation, sales & marketing in Asia Pacific Regions.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESkEEEEAS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr NG Hok Lim, Steve, aged 57, the Marketing Director in Greater China
department of the Group, mainly provides supports to the head of International
Affairs & Business Development Department, Technical Development Director and
all General Managers of colourant business in developing business activities and
handling Multinational enterprises. He holds a Master degree of Philosophy in
Organic Chemistry and a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Mr Ng joined the Group in August 2007. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr Ng has over 3| years' experience in business management and held several
senior positions in various Multinational Companies and a China Local Company for
sales and marketing of Specialties Chemicals plus New Product Development in Asia

Pacific Regions including Greater China Region.

Mr HUI Yan Kit, Sam, aged 38, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of colour
masterbatches and functional masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai and
other cities in Eastern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from University of
Toronto. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over |3 years' experience in business

management, sales & marketing. Mr Hui Yan Kit, Sam is the son of Mr Hui Sai Chung.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| am pleased to announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
("the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended
30th June 2011. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of
HK$1,687,687,000 (2010: HK$1,271,463,000) and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$31,716,000 (2010: HK$28,352,000). Earnings per
share for the year were HK8.59 cents (2010: HK7.68 cents). The Board of Directors
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKI.0 cent (2010: HK2.0 cents) per
share. Together with the interim dividend of HKI.0 cent (2010: HKI.0 cent) per
share, the total dividend payment for the year under review is HK2.0 cents per share

(2010: HK3.0 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the period under review, in the light of the unstable performance of the
European and American markets due to the sovereign debt crisis, the Group has
continued its business strategy of focusing on expanding its market in Mainland
China. Supported by steady economic growth in Mainland China, the Group
recorded an increase of 13% in overall sales volume during the year. Product prices
have also climbed by 20% along with the rise in oil price. The growth in sales volume
and product prices led to a surge of 33% in overall turnover to HK$1,687,687,000
over the corresponding period of last year. The Group’s sales mix has also been
changed during the year The proportion of plastics trading business with lower gross
margin as part of total turnover has increased from 61% of the corresponding
period last year to 66%. At the same time, the Group did not shift the increase in
raw material prices fully to its customers in order to maintain its market share. As a
result, its gross profit was maintained at the similar level of last year at approximately
HK$ 167,532,000 while the gross profit margin was 9.9%.

With the increased sales volume, inflation and implementation of minimum wage
legislation in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group'’s administrative expenses
and sales and distribution costs have risen. Including the Group’s other gains such as
fair value gains on investment properties, net exchange gains and unrealised fair
value gains and realised gains of derivative financial instruments, profit attributable to

equity holders for the year was HK$31,716,000.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Contid)

During the vear, plastic trading business performed the best among other businesses.
Plastics trading business grew with turnover up 43% to HK$1,106,348,000 from last
year. After stepping up efforts in expanding this business segment in Mainland China,
the Group has received an increasing volume of orders from large scale Mainland
enterprises. Thus the turnover from the China market has achieved an almost
twofold increase. Turnover from the Hong Kong market also increased by nearly
30%. For the Mainland China market, the Group’s Tianjin sales office, which started
operation last June, and the existing sales office in Shanghai secured new customers
in Northern and Eastern China. The Group also received a number of new orders
from heavy industry manufacturers during the year, such as the silicon materials to
be used in electrical equipment for electricity industry, and nylon materials for car
industry, including intake manifold, exhaust pipe and window seal. Meanwhile, the
Group provided preferential offer terms for large orders, thus gross margin in the
plastics trading business reduced when compared to the same period last year. Profit
before taxation was HK$3,209,000.

The colorant and compounded plastic resin business recorded turnover growth of
1 7% to HK$309,674,000 during the year. The Group has developed tailor-made
colorant and compounded plastic resin products for customers, enabling better
control of the selling price and gross profit. Gross margin was maintained at the
similar level of same period last year Through the link with the International Colour
Alliance, the Group has secured more orders from the processing factories of
internationally renowned brands in Mainland China. The Group's new plant in Tai Po
commenced production this year, serving customers that require product shipment
in Hong Kong. Products from the new facility also enjoy the preferential tariff
treatment offered under the Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (“CEPA™)
between Mainland China and Hong Kong. Profit before taxation rose by 15% to
approximately HK$19,028,000.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Contd)

Although the engineering plastics business was affected by the Euro debt crisis and
slowed down in the second half of the financial year, the annual turnover still
recorded an increase of 16% to approximately HK$269,494,000. The relocation of
the factory in Hong Kong was completed this year. The new Tai Po plant boosted the
number of production lines from five to six, bolstering capacity while lowering the
production cost. As the Group has gradually been moving the facilities since this
March, which affected the operations temporarily, gross margin remained at the
similar level of last year. The Group has also committed itself to research and
development of new products, including the development of wood replacements for
household products, and metal replacements for industrial applications such as

pulleys. This segment contributed HK$25,565,000 of profit before taxation.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global market will remain volatile under the influence of the Euro
debt crisis. It is believed that corporate financing will become a key concern for
exporters and manufacturers and present new challenges for upstream plastics
companies. Since the financial crisis of 2009, the coupling effect of plastics prices and
oil price has been reducing, however, the oil price still stands at high level. Besides,
several international chemical products suppliers have cut down their output and
the prices of industrial materials such as precise metal have also stayed at a high
level, so pressures on raw material costs generally remain intense. As such, the
Group will focus on securing new customers and maintaining profitability in the next

year.

As Mainland China benefits from its steady ongoing economic development, the
Group continues to focus on this market. In the future, the Group is striving to
develop new sales points and strengthen the sales teams at its existing sales offices.
Such measures aim at speeding up the expansion into new locations and tapping
new customers, so as to strengthen overall penetration of the market. Apart from
enhancing its new office in Chengdu, the Group has started to look for a prime
location for the opening of its first sales office in Chongging, through which the
Group will expand the business network in Western China. In addition, the Group’s
sales office in Tianjin has proven to be successful in exploring new customers in the
heavy industries, which received more orders from automotive components
manufacturers and other heavy industry segments. The Group also plans to expand
the offices in Guangzhou and Shanghai to enlarge its market shares in Southern and

Eastern China.
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PROSPECTS (Contd)

In Hong Kong, the new self-owned Taipo plant that commenced operation this June
has boosted the number of production lines from five to six, enabling the Group to
enjoy larger economy of scale and enhance operational efficiency. The eligibility of
engineering plastics and colorant and compounded plastic resins from this plant for
preferred treatment under CEPA can also strengthen the Group’s overall

profitability.

In general, facing uncertainties in the external economic environment, the Group will
continue to reinforce its financial management and control over trade receivables.
Drawing on its experience from the financial crisis, the Group will adopt a prudent
approach in reviewing receivable turnover days and amounts due from customers as
well as when handling new orders, so as to mitigate the financial risk to the lowest

level,

The Group possesses abundant experience in the plastics industry. Despite of
operating in an unstable economic condition, its good relationship with the banks
established over years will assure the Group sufficient financial resources for
supporting business development. The management is confident of achieving steady
growth and generating satisfactory returns for the shareholders through exploring

business opportunities.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFRE

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with intemally generated cashflow and
banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 201 I, the Group has
available aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$516,633,000, of which
approximately HK$372,370,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate
guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties in The People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")
and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements). The Group’s cash and bank balances as at 30th June 2011
amounted to approximately HK$95,826,000. The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June
2011 was approximately 78%, based on the total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$343,941,000, together with obligations under finance leases of approximately
HK$235,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$439,752,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities
are disclosed in Notes 32 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group'’s borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated
in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its

exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK (Contd)
At 30th June 2011, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward

contracts in order to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its

Chairman’s Statement
EFRE
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operations as follows: ZEBEHNZAENT -
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHEIT
Sell HK dollars for US dollars THEBTUEAZET 2,304,900 2,123,550
Sell US dollars for HK dollars THEXTAEAB T 990,600 382,200
Sell HK dollars for Euro THEBTTUAE ABT — 9,265

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2011, the Group had approximately 644 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is
geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an
incentive to motivate its employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The
Group also provides social or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund
scheme (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the location of such

employees.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFRE

APPRECIATION

|, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to the Group’s customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my
fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group
will, as always, with prudence used its best endeavour to strive for its long-term
development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more

promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 201 |
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for

the year ended 30th June 201 1.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in Note 5

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 40.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HKI1.0 cent per ordinary share,

totalling HK$3,692,000, which was paid on 8th April 201 1.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI.0 cent per

ordinary share, totalling HK$3,692,000.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are

set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in Note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2011, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$67,1 11,000 (2010: HK$71,506,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (i) the realisable value
of the company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and

its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is set out on page 161.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s

listed securities during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

SHARE OPTIONS

On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme") and terminated the old share option scheme. Under the terms
of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite Directors and
employees of the Group to take up options (the “Share Options”) to subscribe for

shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

(i) Purpose
The New Scheme is designed to give Directors and employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries an equity interest in the Company in order
to enhance long-term shareholder value. The granting of Share Options will
also help the Company attract and motivate individuals with experience and

ability and to reward individuals for past and future performance.

(i) Qualifying participants

Any employee including any Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(iii) Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and vyet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share
Option may be granted under the new Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The
total number of shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other
option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any

I2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire
more than 10 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the Share
Option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect when
a letter comprising acceptance of the Share Option duly signed by the grantee

is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited's (the “Stock Exchange”) daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, (i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever

is the greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between
5th December 2002 and 4th December 2012 to offer the grant of an option
to any qualifying participants.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE
SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) ERE®
Details of the movements of Share Options outstanding as at 30th June 201 | are as  IREH B R SR M BRER T ——F
Tl NA=ZTERFERAZEHNT
Number of Share Options
BREZRGEA
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise ~ Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year the year
RLAH aEHR g £ ERRE FRORE FR&L EX
Other continuous
contract employees
EfttalRe
I3th February 2008 I3th February 2009 HK$0.78 500,000 — — — 500,000
ZET)\F to 12th February 2014 078 &7
“A+=H “EENE-At+=RE
“R-mE-ATCA
I3t February 2008 I3th February 2010 HK$0.78 500,000 — — — 500,000
ZET)\F to 12th February 2014 078 T
ZR+=H “2-2£-fAf=RZE
“R-mE-ATCA
I3t February 2008 I3th February 2011 HK$0.78 500,000 — — — 500,000
ZET)\F to 12th February 2014 078 &7
“R+=H “2-—#-ff=R%
“R-mE-ATCA
1,500,000 — — — 1,500,000
No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year. PO BB IR I ot 1T (i AE ] PR AR A -
SUBSIDIARIES B /& 2 &
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2011 are set out in BARARZ T EMBLRRAR_E——F <A
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. S TRZFBERGE B ERM 35 -
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INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
DrWONG ChiYing, Anthony

Mr LAl Kam Wah

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr NG Chi Ming

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr CHAN Dit Lung

Mr CHING Yu Lung

Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Madam LIU Sau Lai and Mr CHAN Dit Lung retire by rotation
in accordance with clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and
long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive
industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives
essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an
equity component that is designed to align the long-term interest of management
with those of shareholders. The remuneration package comprises of annual

directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee

meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2011, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief
executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFQO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the "Model Code") contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules") were

as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 201/

l,g r- il

ESZRBEHN

BEREEBRBFAE LEEEXCESH
ERARNAREETAHBRRFTLEE AR
—FABAELRE CZERERIN ML L
RBEH

ESRGNz kR

AR AERAFSEMBLRLELET
VEAEEEBERLRNAFEREEREIAF
ERNEREENAERARARAEFEE LM
BEREEAREZERRN

EERBRTRABRARANEEM
EBEZERARES 2 BER/DKXR

RZZE——FXA=1TH ARAIGREFRE
BAIBABRAR AISETAEREE (TR
BH SR ([EHEE KO ) SEXVE) &
MARAR Gz ESHDELRREESHE
{pgE3s2157F 8 2 aft 2 Bkt - ARG RE
HrREERAR  SRBEBRES ETRA
([EMRA) 2 EMRRESHITESER HIZ
%p R ([ZRSFA]) BRARR R R B R FT e R
EMNTE

R-E-——FEXNA=1ALXRAFGERTE
0.108 T2 EER

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BREREZEXDARNEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests
EEns (PN £ EEER XERER Hiigz
Mr HUI Sai Chung FHEESEE  Long positions 2 15,787,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FFENEE  Long positions # a 18,156,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BFHBL LT Long positions 1,423,000 — — (©)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

Notes:

(@) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In
addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai
Chung. Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-

convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow
Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 2,082,000

shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI
Kwok Kwong. Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible

redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow.

(c)  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held
196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2011, are as follows:
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()

M

(@ ZEMK’MH P 21967215008 75 B Good
Benefit Limited ([ Good Benefit]) &% °
Ever Win Limited ([Ever Win) # % Good
Benefit B9 2+ B —#z (H5E(0) o bk
5h 6,000,000/ % 13 B3 Ever WinE #2575 -

Ever WinZ iR EIE107T 2 & @A 1750,000/%
mEFH L ARE - ST REERERERH
A#EAEver Win AREEBE A LB AER
B M%33,95708 55 °

b) % % KR fn # 2 196,721,500 T3
Good Benefitf A ° Evergrow Company
Limited ([ Evergrow] ) # & Good Benefit
BOZN+RE —#x (e -
Itk 4h 2,082,000 ik £ @1 Evergrow B ¥ #%
5o

Evergrow®& B A E 10T 2 & 3® 12 /750,000
BRAFEREERE FEXEERHEE
Evergrow ASEME 1 Al 5 7] B 08 4 I
30,8230 °

(c) EZHEGood Benefit(R—ZE——F XA
=+ BEARRAT96,721,5000 8 1) B

ZEGERMT

Number Percentage

Name of Directors of shares of holding
EEpK RHHE BERESL
Mr HUI Sai Chung ERusip e 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FEIREE 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEEELL 80 0.8%
Others Hity 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

As at 30th June 2011, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an
option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the said

non-voting deferred shares.

L

EERBRTRAEBRARAANEEM
HEEIERARES 2EER/FAXE
(%)

RZE——%FXA=+AH" —FW%%%E%
ZRREERAAEREEETROER

Z A @ 2K FNgai Hing (International)

Company Limited] i B L it 1% R REE AR

th 2 BERRHE -

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

FEERZEEELZROHE
Personal Other
Name of Directors interests interests
BEEpE BARER HitE s
Mr HUI Sai Chung FEREEE 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B . 200,000 50,000(ii)

Notes:
(i)  These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i)~ These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of
the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at
30th June 2011, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company and associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of

the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2011, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been
notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

chief executives as disclosed above,

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the year.
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Report of the Directors
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the vyear attributable to the Group’s major

suppliers are as follows:

16%
59%

The largest supplier

Five largest suppliers combined

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers
is less than 10% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended 30th June 2011 and

therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had

an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors
and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu
Lung. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and
financial reporting matters including a review of the annual financial statements for

the year ended 30th June 2011 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the

Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires

and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 201 |
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management
throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises
on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance

principles and structures.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix |4 of the
Listing Rules throughout year ended 30th June 201 I, except for deviation of the

code provisions A.2.| and A4.| of the Code as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Board has not appointed an individual to the
post of chief executive officer. The roles of the chief executive officer have been
performed collectively by all the executive directors, including the chairman, of the
Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all
executive directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the
Company's policies and strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review
the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an individual to chief

executive officer when it thinks appropriate.

Code Provision A4.| stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Company's independent non-executive
directors were not appointed for a specific term but is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in

accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all directors and all directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the

year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance
The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced

composition of executive and non-executive directors. The Board conducts meetings

on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

ESg
ESe4AN EZEERRESHRERY

ARANEFEAB/HENBRONER  ME
RHTEFEFNTESNAS TMRIFEEE -
ETEUEHIEEXBRER AT EZET A

year, the Board held a total of five regular board meetings and fifteen ad-hoc board BOGRE - NFR EFEAHAETLRED
meetings. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set out ESeeRRTAABIESE R -E5T
below: ARREFHREFBOT -
No. of No. of
regular ad-hoc
Attendants meetings Attendance  meetings Attendance
5
HEE flars HERXB SBFR¥ HEIY
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) Attt A (£F) 5 5 15 15
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AT B 5t A 5 5 15 14
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) (BIEEREFHLE)
DrWONG Chi Ying, Anthony BETEEL 5 5 15 15
Mr LAl Kam Wah RBELLE 5 5 5 5
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBXL 5 4 5 15
Mr NG Chi Ming RERLE 5 4 15 14
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTESE !
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul AESEE 5 5 15 0
Mr CHAN Dit Lung RixExLE 5 5 15 0
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIgELE 5 4 5 0

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the
Board and has met the recommended practice under the Code to have at least
one-third of its members comprising independent non-executive directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and financial management expertise. The biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, which demonstrates a

diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

BTSN RBANK  BNERREHEE
SERARE B - BAKRBRTAHT
RIMEEESEEN BRI BA=2—RBILHE
RTEZIWE - ROVBFBUFRTES
FERENSH AR BER ERER - BE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance (Cont'd)

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the definition of the

Listing Rules.

Role and Function
*  To establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and

set the objectives of the management;

*  To approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

*  To decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

*  To oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.

Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of
the Company and of the Group.The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30th June 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th
June 201 [, the Members of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies
and, apart from those new and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30th June 201 I,
have applied them consistently with previous financial periods. Judgments and

estimates have been made that are prudent and reasonable.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 38 to 39.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not set up a nomination committee. The nomination of new directors
has been delegated to the Chairman and other executive directors. They review
regularly the need to appoint additional directors with appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience. The Board will then consider the appointment

of the candidates nominated by them as directors of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee
consists of all independent non-executive directors. The composition and attendance

record of the Audit Committee are as follows:

| Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

REEE

ESEVENURLRZEE - REHMESME

FEREMRTESAR - REEEHEMNZRE

EABERNBRTERERIBIESZLE
HiE BEZEERERZEREMREALK

EALERRAES -

pALEH

B B

REEE
24

AREBREH I REREELZEG B
ERE - ERZZESHEBAYIFNTESA
Ko BREREGZARRERELENT

Number of meetings Attendance
Attendants attended/Total percentage
HEE HESEREBRE HE R
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) WEEtE (ZEEEE) 3/3 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIKBEL & 3/3 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung BT E 3/3 100%
Role and Function BERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to

maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Given below are the main

duties of the Audit Committee:

(a) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature

and scope of the audit;

BERZE ST RRAARRMBRE RAME
IRFCEBMRAEER  AREAAFING
MR B RIS RAFRAMR

ERZRENBREELETESHMASRN
H(ERZ BEARERESD RENEER
ff-BZREGREENTIREBAMEIMT

(a) RN AN R R 5 T2 AT (] B AR
LR EAME

(b) BT ER# 1 5 BN BT 3 26
BHILE RO
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)
Role and Function (Contd)
(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to

the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;
(iv) the going concern assumption;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements; and

(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters
the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management

where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 201 [, the Audit Committee met three times during

the year, in particular, to review and discuss the followings:

*  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

*  the appointment of external auditor;

*  the establishment of internal control system; and

*  the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and

all senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee which stated clearly its authorities and duties in accordance with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange.The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors and an executive director. The composition

and attendance record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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RRERIT -

Number of meetings Attendance
Attendants attended/Total percentage
HEE HESENE BRH i *
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Chairman) EELEE (FE) /1 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung PRIKBELE & /1 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung By /1 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung E S /1 100%
Role and Function ABRBE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and overseeing the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance and
review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The remuneration

committee held one meetings during the year ended 30th June 201 I.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

RBH#HE

RER - ARERBMEIRKEEAMER
PR 2 B NGFB RS - MARRGAE
REENRENZEBERMT :

HK$
BT
Audit services for the Group RASERHEZEZRS 1,823,000
Non-audit services including: FEZRBBE
— review of interim results —BHPHES 255,000
— taxation services for the Group - RAEERE 2 HERS 256,000
— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AEEEFRENMZEERER
annual results announcement 17,000
Total BnE 2,351,000
INTERNAL CONTROL AR 12
The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and for ~ EEEFABARBENABEZZARRTE
reviewing its effectiveness. The management of the Company has established a set of Mo ARAMERERRIE —ERENK
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial R BEREFR SEREEEERE  MKE
and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for BREREE  URFAEGIRELEZR
maintaining proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial REENFERASIEE  RIFEZENGFLH

information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the

occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the internal control systems, the Company has
engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to conduct
independent internal control review and to evaluate major operations of the Group.
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the

Company and its subsidiaries with no material issues noted.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. The Company’s
website provides email address, postal address, fax number and telephone number
by which enquiries may be put to the Company. Constantly being updated in a
timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the Group's

business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a

high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in all
circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in
the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board
attends the Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. Poll results
are published on the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the

Company's corporate website shortly after the meetings.

| Corporate Governance Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BILZBENRE

_n
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 40 to 160, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30th June 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Contd)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 201 |, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th September 201 |

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement il -
FEeWMEE

For the Year ended 30th June 201 | E=F——FANA=1HILFE

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Lo THER TET
Revenue Y zs 5 1,687,687 1,271,463
Cost of sales HERA 8 (1,520,155) (1,110,389
Gross profit EF 167,532 161,074
Other income Hit A 6 3,364 2,880
Other gains, net Hinlss — % E 7 12,693 4,656
Distribution costs 2SR 8 (46,520) (37,554)
Administrative expenses TE X 8 (83,168) (79,878)
Operating profit Sl 53,901 51,178
Finance income B iU an 239 254
Finance costs B 75 & (7,614) (3,738)
Finance costs - net BMBER-—%E 9 (7,375) (3,484)
Share of loss of an associated company DEMENRERSE (184) —
Profit before income tax B 25¢ B g A 46,342 47,694
Income tax expense MIEXZ 10 (10,547) (16,899)
Profit for the year ZNeSigl 35,795 30,795
Attributable to: AN ARG
Equity holders of the Company NG E N 31,716 28,352
Non-controlling interests TR 4,079 2,443
35,795 30,795
Earnings per share for profit attributable AEZRAIREEE & T
to equity holders of the Company during a3 iyl
the year (expressed in HK cent per share) (ARENET)
~ Basic —&EX 13 8.59 7.68
— Diluted %% 13 8.59 7.68

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F5I 10BN A G TBRERNEEY

statements. )

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the FERARIRE 2R EFI5EH M zE12

profit for the year are set out in Note [2.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

=)

e R

For the Year ended 30th june 201 | HE=F——FNA=THILFE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Profit for the year AR A 35,795 30,795
Other comprehensive income: H A iR e Was
Revaluation gain of property, plant and ME  BERRERBEE i
equipment and leasehold land and land REtEREERERENE
use rights on transfer to investment ZBRBeEfKE
properties, net of tax (Note 28(a)) (Bt5E 28(a)) 1,224 1,824
Revaluation gain of an available-for-sale AHENBEEY
financial asset (Note 20) stz (FsE 20) 439 _—
Currency translation differences bEH =R 14,972 —
Other comprehensive income for the year REHMARE W 16,635 1,824
Total comprehensive income for the year RELEA W B 52,430 32,619
Total comprehensive income attributable to: HERGHERBEN
— Equity holders of the Company —ARIRE 48,194 30,176
— Non-controlling interests — Pl A 4,236 2,443
52,430 32,619

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

FHIZ160ANMERERAKRA M BRRNE
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Consolidated Balance Sheet ] -
FEEERBER

As at 30th June 201 | R=F——FA=1H

As at As at As at
30th June 30th June I'st July
2011 2010 2009
R-®-——% R-FT-FTE RTINS
RA=+H ~NA=+H +A—H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
P E FERT TR TR
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z31) (Z71)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB REE 16 149,205 121,740 105,006
Leasehold land and land use rights HELHMR T MERE 17 11,313 14,700 8,983
Investment properties REME 18 42,626 30,560 25,430
Intangible assets BREE 19 = — 2,400
Available-forsale financial asset JRHERHEE 20 1,129 690 850
Deferred tax assets EXEHAEE 30 5,988 4,486 8,386
Deposits for acquisition of properties WEMEz RS 8,614 8,125 11,025
Prepayments for property, plant E R E LT
and equipment and renovation costs FKIEHENR 1,513 7,129 —
220,388 187,430 162,080
Current assets MBEE
Inventories FE 22 330,314 278,846 156,605
Trade and bills receivables BEZREFRERREE 23 276,615 238,545 170,469
Other receivables, prepayments Hofth UK -
and deposits ANREERS 21,867 22,810 9,034
Tax recoverable Al i [ 75 18 625 969 2,338
Derivative financial instruments THEERIA 24 3,113 [,755 862
Cash and bank balances RE R|ITHEH 25 95,826 82,589 90,652
728,360 625514 429,960
Total assets BEE 948,748 812,944 592,040

The notes on pages 5| to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FE1Z160ENMERE R M BREROER

statements. 3o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
SEEEEER

As at 30th June 201 | R=B——%FA=FH

As at As at As at
30th June 30th June I'st July
2011 2010 2009
R-B——-% RKR-T-ZTF R-_TTNF
AA=tH NA=+H +HA—H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt TEx TET TR
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z31) (Z3)
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable to the 73 A% B FE{f
Company's equity holders R K
Share capital IR 27 36,920 36,920 36,920
Share premium BB 27 62,466 62,466 62,466
Other reserves HitfE 28 63,685 47,176 45,260
Retained earnings RE & A 28 276,681 256,041 232,229
439,752 402,603 376,875
Non-controlling interests s 22,526 20,831 19,348
Total equity ERes 462,278 423,434 396,223
LIABILITIES &R
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Obligations under finance leases MEHERM 29 — 235 693
Deferred tax liabilities ELHRARE 30 8,107 5241 4,155
8,107 5476 4,848
The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F51E160 B M T AR S MIFHRRNEE

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

FEEERMER

As at 30th fune 20/ | R=FE——%FXA=1H

-‘J
=

As at As at As at
30th June 30th June I'st July
201 | 2010 2009
RZE——F R-T—FTF RZZEZTNF
AA=1+H NA=1H +A—H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FTERT FHATT FATT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (E531)
Current liabilities REBE
Trade payables B 5N 26 102,424 97,630 63962
Other payables, deposits received Hih A - ElET2
and accruals RIERE 21,377 19,524 15,660
Obligations under finance leases - MEHEEEE-
current portion BIERER R 29 235 458 2,047
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 343,941 252,531 98,971
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 24 4,930 6,272 4742
Tax payable FERTHIE 5,456 7,619 5,587
478,363 384,034 190,969
Total liabilities mafE 486,470 389,510 195,817
Total equity and liabilities BERRER 948,748 812,944 592,040
Net current assets FRBEE 249,997 241,480 238,991
Total assets less current liabilities PEERRSARE 470,385 428910 401,071
On behalf of the Board REXEFE

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

FF iR

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet
BEEBER

As at 30th fune 20/ | R=F——F~NF=+H

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FTAER FATT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets 3'577553%@
Investments in subsidiaries BEARKE 21 62,711 62,711
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries L DIEENGIE 21 104,590 108,927
Other receivables H b I K 158 144
Cash and bank balances Re RFITHER 25 135 170
104,883 109,241
Total assets mEE 167,594 171,952
EQUITY g
Capital and reserves attributable to the NAIR R FE(E IR I (8
Company's equity holders
Share capital AR 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium B E 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves H b 28 62,926 62,895
Retained earnings RE & A 28 4,600 8,995
Total equity B 166,912 |71,276

FH1Z160E MK EAGA M EHRRNEED

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

o
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Balance Sheet
BEEBER

As at 30th June 201 | R=F——%,XF=+H

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FHET FHETT
LIABILITIES B&E
Current liabilities RHEE
Accruals TEIREA 682 676
Total equity and liabilities mERRkAaRE 167,594 171,952
Net current assets FREEE 104,201 108,565
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 166,912 171,276
On behalf of the Board KEEFS

HUI Sai Chung
Chairman

TE

At ER

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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HUI Kwok Kwong

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
BT EREFHLE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
FEEREIR

For the Year ended 30th june 201 | HE=F——FNA=THILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARRELSH
Other reserves
Bt
Avallable-
for-sale
financial
Share asset  Exchange Non-
option reserve fluctuation controlling

Share Share  reserve  Capital Revaluation WHE  reserve Retained  interests

apitl  premum  BERE  resee  reserve  BIEE Bf  eamings  FFEH Total
Bx BARE R EARR ERER 0 BB RIER RE4N 00 BR 0 28
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKFOOO  HK$000  HKFO00  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Thn TRt TEr TEr TEr TEr TEn TR TEn TEn

At st July 2009 R-ZENELA-H 36920 62466 9] 408 2115 — M 39 19348 39203
Comprehensive income Geka
Profit for the year KEEH — - - - - — BIWB07%
Other comprehensive income Efpiralis
Revaluation gain of property plant and 0% BEREGEHRE
equipment and leasehold land and land TR HEREER
Use rights on transfer to investment ERENE B
propertes, net of tax (Note 28(a)) Bfhla (W3t 2800) = L - L
Total comprehensive income Geliaies - - 18 — 248 3609
Transactions with owners BEEIR5
Employees share options scheme: [EEERENE -
- value of employee services -EERKER 9 = = = - 9
20092010 inerim dividend paid ZH=2E0/
“E-RERRERS - - - — — - (B
Dividends paid to non-controling XHTEENER
interests ZRE = = = = (1808)  (1.808)
Acquistion of additional interest W -HEAT
in a subsidary LENER - - - - 848 -
Total transactions with owners BfRELRHEE 9 - - - (%0)  (5:408)
At 30th June 2010 R_B-RERA=TH 36920 62466 384 408 3939 — DM 604l 081 423434

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E51R160E MM AGE M IEHRNBEL

é

)

statements.

o

=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

FEERBHER

For the Year ended 30th June 201 | E=F——FANA=1HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARRELSH
Other reserves
Bt
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share asset  Exchange Non-
option reserve  fluctuation controlling
Share Share  reserve  Cpital Revauation THEHE  reserve  Retained interests
apital  premivm  BRE  resene  resere  BIEEE EX  amng  FEF Total
Bx BXEE  BE 43EE EMBE 0 BE RIRE REEA  BE 4B
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000
tér TEr fEx fEr TEr fEr TExr TEn fEr TER
At Ist July 2010 RZZ-ZELA-H 36920 62466 384 408 3939 — 445 26041 2081 423434
Comprehensive income falia
Proft for the year RE T - - - - - - — 376 4019 35795
Other comprehensive income Epirakis
Revaluation gain of property, plant and EN e
equipment and leasehold land and land RETHRLHERE
Use rights on transfer to investment BRERENZ CRAG
properties, net of tax (Note 28(a)) Btk (B 28a) = = = - 124 - - - - 1,24
Revaluation gain of an available-for-sale it EaHEE
financial asset (Note 20) 2BfEWE (Mt 20) = = = — — 439 — — - 439
Currency translation differences ERZE - - - - - — 14815 - 157 1497
Total comprehensive income Galaas - - - - 1M 49 14815 3TI6 486 5240

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
FEREEHE

For the Year ended 30th june 201 | HE=F——FNA=THILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Compary

AARREESH
Other reserves
LU
Available-
forsale
financial
Share asset  Exchange Non-
option reserve  fluctuation controlling
Share  Share  reserve  Cpital Revaluation FHEHE  reserve  Retained interests
apital  premium  BRE  reseve  reseve HEEE EX  amng  FEH Total
Bx BXEE % 458K EGRE  BE XORE REEN  RE  4E
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK§000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEr TEn fEr TEr TEx TEr TEr fEn TEx
Transactions with owners BHAELRS
Employees share options scheme: [EREMETE -
- value of employee services -EEREER — - 3 — — — — - - 3
200912010 final dividend paid %55/
Z2-SEERERE - - - - - - - (134 - (1384)
2010011 interim dividend paid $H=%-3/
e - - - - - - - () - (3&9)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests X f4 T3l 2 R 8 = - - - - - - - (30)  (3%0)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 31(c)) WE-HEAT
(H3E31(0) - - - - - - - - (lel)  (le)
Totaltransactions with owners BRAELRHEE - - 3] - - - —  (I10%6)  (541)  (1358)
At 30th June 2011 R_E——£7A=TH 36920 62466 415 408 5,163 49 57260 26681 22526 460,278

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

FEIZ160ANMERGAMBHRROBES
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50/

Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows
GZEHRERER

For the Year ended 30th June 201 | E=F——FANA=1HILFE

2 e
i

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Fiyat THERT FET
Cash flows from operating activities REZXBZHER
Cash used in operations REXBARERZRS 31(a) (13,561) (98,058)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHERNEH (3,446) 2,119
PRC income tax paid R GlE T (8,091) 7,171
Net cash used in operating activities REXBRERERE (25,098) (107,348)
Cash flows from investing activities REZFKZHENM
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BERERE (26,165) (30,279)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights B 5 0 & = ih }o -3 {5 F 48 — (6,086)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (5,415) _—
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  HEK
plant and equipment REFER 31(b) 245 250
Prepayments for property, plant ME - BE KRR
and equipment and renovation costs FKIEHENR (1,513) (7,129)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y bE — KB 2 A 31(c) 93 —
Net cash used in investing activities REEZBHRERZFR: (32,755) (43,244)
Cash flows from financing activities REXB HENR
New bank loans HMIBRITER 48,852 67,942
Repayment of bank loans HERTER (27,702) (58,454)
Increase in trust receipt loans =R E TIEM 65,841 144,072
Repayment of capital element of finance leases  EEFEREE RN H (458) (2,047)
Interest element of finance lease payments BEHEMSHBMH (15) (52
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ST FIEIES S BB (2,380) (1,808)
Dividends paid ZRRE (11,076) (3,692)
Interest received BHFE 239 254
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITEEN S (7,599) (3,686)
Net cash generated from financing activities REXBHEEZFRS 65,702 142,529
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBeSHEL
cash equivalents #m/ Cid) 7,849 (8,063)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNzRER
of the year ResdE 31(d) 82,589 90,652
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXEFTE 2,795 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZHAe kA2 ER 31(d) 93,233 82,589

The notes on pages 51 to 160 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HMI I, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been

approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th September 201 .

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial asset, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through

profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

(@

Annual Report
FERE 10711

Effect of adopting amendments to standards and interpretations

The following amendments to standards and interpretations are

mandatory for the financial year ended 30th June 201 I:

Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") |7 (Amendment),
“Leases”, deletes specific guidance regarding classification of
leases of land, so as to eliminate inconsistency with the
general guidance on lease classification. As a result, leases of
land should be classified as either finance or operating lease
using the general principles of HKAS |7, i.e. whether the lease
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset to the lessee. Prior to the amendment,
land interest which title is not expected to pass to the Group
by the end of the lease term was classified as operating lease
under “Leasehold land and land use rights”, and amortised

over the lease term.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMFPEHRFRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

(a) Effect of adopting amendments to standards and interpretations
(Contd)

()

(Contd)

HKAS 17 (Amendment) has been applied retrospectively for
annual periods beginning Ist July 2010 in accordance with the
effective date and transitional provisions of the amendment.
The Group has reassessed the classification of unexpired
leasehold land and land use rights as at Ist July 2010 on the
basis of information existing at the inception of those leases,
and recognised certain leasehold land in Hong Kong as finance
leases retrospectively. As a result of the reassessment, the
Group has reclassified certain leasehold land and land use
rights from operating leases to finance leases. Such land
interest of the Group that is held for own use is accounted
for as property, plant and equipment and is depreciated from
the land interest available for its intended use over the

shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

2 FEEHBEHSE#®
2.1 HREE(E)
(a) ERANVEERIZETTRABNY
2 (&

(i)

(&

REB U E A LB H
MBEMEGR  BEE
ATERIEN T (BRTA)
ER-F—FFLH—
B 5 fa 2 I B F 2 HA
BHER - AKEER
BHERKENREE
Mo ERIER-F—
ZELA-RRERN
THE T o+ 30 5 R
MoR - YERERE
THRBEENEELH
ABEHEE Bt &
SECEREREELH
AREHEBNERA
BHE - M EMEE
SFEER - L
s ARANE  BE R
R LELMERA
HEHERAEEEER
ERERRBEHME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
Effect of adopting amendments to standards and interpretations
(Contd)

(@)

Annual Report
FERE 10711

()

(Cont'd)
The effect of adoption of HKAS |7(Amendment) is as follows:

2 FESHHEHE (&)
2.1 WREE(E
(a) FRHEERZETRRENY
Z(F

(i)

(&)
RKERBGERET
BRI A)NE 2
T

As at 30th As at 30th As at st
June 2011 June 2010 July 2009
R=%——% R-T-2F R-FINF
AA=tH NA=TH +HA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TR
Increase in property, mE - BB R
plant and equipment R AL 5,967 6,305 7,015
Decrease in leasehold land METH R
and land use rights o+ E AR A (5,967) (6,305) (7,015)

The adoption of this amendment also resulted in an increase
in depreciation of property, plant and equipment of
HK$175,000 and a decrease in amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights of HK$175,000 for the year ended 30th
June 2010.

In November 2010 the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™) issued Hong Kong Interpretation 5
“Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause”. The Interpretation is effective immediately
and is a clarification of an existing standard, HKAS |
“Presentation of Financial Statements”. It sets out the
conclusion reached by the HKICPA that a term loan which
contains a clause which gives the lender the unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time shall be classified as a
current liability in accordance with paragraph 69(d) of HKAS
| irrespective of the probability that the lender will invoke the
clause without cause.

LB ] 70 5| BUR B
E-T-TEFEXA=F
BEEEMTE  BE

HEZHMELM
175,000 T R E L
R+ {E ARz # iR
175,000 TC °
EECHMACTER =
R Rl NS
ARBELY [MBHRR
ZAH-ERAHEE
BERBKRZEHER
2R WA o ik
REBEEHEEZER
BB G ERIE R[5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMFPEHRFRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

(a) Effect of adopting amendments to standards and interpretations
(Contd)

(if)

(Contd)

In order to comply with the requirements of Hong Kong
Interpretation 5, the Group has changed its accounting policy
on the classification of term loans that contain a repayment
on demand clause. Under the new policy, term loans with
clauses which give the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time are classified as current liabilities in the
balance sheet. Previously such term loans were classified in
accordance with the agreed repayment schedule unless the
Group had breached any of the loan covenants set out in the
agreement as of the reporting date or otherwise had reason
to believe that the lender would invoke its rights under the

immediate repayment clause within the foreseeable future.

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively
by re-presenting the opening balances at Ist July 2009, with
consequential reclassification adjustments to comparatives for
the year ended 30th June 2010.The reclassification has had no
effect on reported profit or loss, total comprehensive income

or equity for any period presented.

2 FEEHBEHSE#®
2.1 HREE(E)
(a) ERANVEERIZETTRABNY
2 (&

(ii)

(%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEUBHRTRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(a) Effect of adopting amendments to standards and interpretations

2 TESHHEHE ®
2.1 HREE(E)

(a) HRAHEAZEITRARBNF

(Cont'd) 2%
(i) (Contd) (i) (%)
The effect of adoption of Hong Kong Interpretation 5 is as RNEBREESRAT
follows: sOT
As at As at As at
30th June 201 | 30th June 2010 I'st July 2009
R=B——-F RIZ-FTF R-ZZEZTNF
AA=tH ANA=+H +H—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET TET
Increase in current liabilities mENEBEEM
- bank borrowings —RITEE 19,767 15,600 —
Decrease in non-current FRBARERD
liabilities - bank borrowings —RITEEE (19,767) (15,600) —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(a) Effect of adopting amendments to standards and interpretations

(Contd)

(i)

The following amendments to standards and interpretations

are also mandatory for the financial year ended 30th June

201 1. The adoption of these amendments to standards does

not have any significant impact to the results and financial

position of the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendment)
ZREBUBMELER (BFTF)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
BRE G EAFE2R (BT

HKFRS | (Amendment)
EeE e R EARACHES)

HKFRS | (Amendment)

EeE e R EARACHES)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
EeL R EVEACHES)

Hong Kong International Financial

Reporting Interpretations Committee

("HK(IFRIC)™)-Int 19
& (AR BAERBEAR)
- REE19%

First-time Adopters

FEETHREE (@)
2.1 HREXE(B)
(a) HRAHEAZEITRRENF
2(&

(iii)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009!
2009F ZEARBHBRE LR 2B

Classification of Rights Issues
R D1

RELBERNERAR

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int |6 which were effective for the Group

for annual period beginning on Ist July 2009, all other

amendments are effective for the Group for annual period

beginning on Ist July 2010.

ABRATAEHEMBAE

AT S 2 R B 8 BT A0 2
BNLARBE-_F—
—ERNA=TRIEH
BREERM - RALE
HERMET MR BY
AEBZRERMBM
URIEEN-Z

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

BRRRBENBERELRE - HERLRR

Limited Exemptions from Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for

BARRBERBERE LR EBBRRELY B REENETH

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

MDD XNz - KRENREXNR S

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

" REBEMBREE
AE2%  EREER
ERE38H - BB
(BEEMERERE
ZEg) REIW
L& R (BB MR
HREZEE) 2
BE16% 2 ETmA
SE-_ZTNE+A
—RENFHRBAHL
MO EERERTH A
AEE-_T-ZF+
A—RARAFRAM
BENT
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q.-d
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements gl i ﬂm
ZEMEHRFRMEE

(®)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 IEETHRHME ®
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 2.1 HHEE(F)
The following new standards, amendments to standards and (b) ATRAERAMELEIFNEEZ
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the year Z——E X A=THLENTR

Annual Report
FERE 10711

ended 30th June 201 | and have not been early adopted:

HKFRSs (Amendment)
ZREEUBMELER (BFTF)

HKAS | (Amendment)
BRI R IEALACHES)
HKAS 12 (Amendment)
R e ENE125 (BFTX)

HKAS 19 (201 1)
B ERIE195:(2011)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
BRI ERE245 (KEF)

HKAS 27 (201 1)
BB S ERIE275(2011)
HKAS 28 (201 1)

B ERIE 2857 (2011)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
BRAMBREEUBTHR (BITX)

HKFRS 9
BREMBRELAER

HKFRS 9 (Addition)
BAREMBREEFIR (BT
HKFRS 10
BRMBREERE 105

HKFRS | |
BEMBRELNE 1R

FREAEBMFEN - AR
ERIMERE - WEREPRS

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
20105 2 BB B BRE LR 2 B0t

Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income?
Hiiz e W aTE B K252

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets?

ELHIR - WA E?

Employee Benefits®

BB @A

Related Party Disclosures'

BELRE

Separate Financial Statements’

EBHBHRR

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures®
REE AR RAEEENRE

Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets'

BHEENEARE

Financial Instruments’
ERMIAS

Financial Liabilities®

BHARES

Consolidated Financial Statements®

RN R E

Joint Arrangements?
CRES



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

(®)

(Contd)
HKFRS 12
BEMBREERE12%

HKFRS 13

BREMBRE LA F135H AP EEES

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 (Amendment)
EE(ARNEHRERBEEG) —REF 145
(CHEN

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 201 |

2 Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on st July 2012

E Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on st July 2013

HKAS 12 (Amendment) introduced a rebuttable presumption that
deferred tax on investment property carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 shall be measured reflecting the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amount of the investment property entirely
through sale. Consequently, deferred tax liability in respect of the
Group’s investment properties will be required to measure with
reference to the tax liability that would arise if the properties were
disposed of at their carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
amendments are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
I'st July 2012 and are required to be applied retrospectively. The
Directors are currently assessing the impact of the amendment to

the Group.

Except for the above, the Directors anticipate that the adoption of
other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretation
will not result in a significant impact on the results and financial

position of the Group.

2

Fair Value Measurement?

FEMBRRME

FEETHBRBE (@)
2.1 HREX(E)

(&)

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®
REMERAER R E

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement'

REEERROBHFK

! RAKE —T——FLtA—

AR M R R A

2 HASE_Z——F+H—
AEMF R R AN

S HAKE-Z—=FtA—
R 8 &Y 4F 3 28 fe A

BB ENE1 25 (BFTA)
SIE-AFREZER : RIE
ER G ENSEI0RARTFE
BEARZRENENELH R
BARBRZRENETEHE
DA B B AR B R 2 AR R
ATE -l AEERNERED
FLEERRRERREUE
DEBRRAERNFEE 2KE
EHERMES 2 HBAER
CRNACHNERA S Sl
FLA-BENOMRFERLEN
THREHER - EFHILFHE
HETHAKB I E -

SRIALA - EFRRRMAE
R 2RI - ST MR
FUTEHAKE L EZERHS
BRRBREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of

the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)

Annual Report
FEHRE 10/ 11

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the

acquiree’s net assets.

2 FEEHBRBE @

HEkRE
BEMBRREBRARAREMRE
WEBLARBRZERNA=THIL2#H
BE -

2.2

(a)

g NG|

NAEEAEREEMBRE
BRE  —RIEBBFEA
TRERZBENMBER

BRMBRR - EFEAKE
_REEHZ—ERK  Bald

TR LB EERZEN
FHERZEOTERE - HEA
AEEGEEBEAKERER
PEFAAR  UHEEREL
ItERREFEIZAAR -

AEENEBAHRAKES
ADEAR o WM B A Rl HE
BRERLAKENBREE
FELABERMBTRENA
FE - BRRERRRIANK
BRBEMELENENEERE
& - KB IR ARNE LR
RFX « NEB A G TR
MR BRI EE R AENRE
REARAE  NFREERN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 FEEHBEHSE#®
2.2 Consolidation (Contd) 22 HEKE (B
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont'd) (a) KEBRA(E)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.9). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration amendments.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.,

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is

recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

A B A BRI B LA AN bR
WEBRAR (2.9 © K
R B R BR K AR EER]
EXNREZE - KRR
ANEBRRBEMIEKRAR © KRRF]
Re MRk R S EEKHE
PCIES UN

FEEAE  RWRBANER
RS S B REFEAR
GLCINE: 3 S EAS R
AVERBASEEEMKE
AR EEHEN D FENE
BARIIEEE - HMABEE
RABBEBAMBARNE
EFENATE AZZRE
EERNEGRAHBERAE

=7
o ©

SERRRARNRS  R5E

BRRR BB T AR - R
BEEBERMTALE  ERER

FEREEREIRERR -
MEARMNE RRIEHLE
Bk AHERERKERAN
GERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(b)

Annual Report
FERE 10711

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on

disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit

or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

2
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&= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHmRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 FEEHBEHSE#®

2.2 HAKE (&)

c) HEna

2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for by using the equity method of

accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any long-
term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on

behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in
the associate. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the associate have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are

recognised in the income statement.

BEARAAEBEAEEAY
ZHEUEEHEZHEER
—REEZEERBASL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.3 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The

chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the executive directors of the Company that make

strategic decisions.

2.4
(9)

(b)

Annual Report
FERE 10711

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and

the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are recognised in the income statement.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRMEE

TESHBERE (&)
24 SEBRE(E
c) ZEEET LA

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates

of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as part

of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost

less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or

recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The car

amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs

rying

and

maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended

Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease

from
use.

and

depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate their costs to their residual values over their estimated useful

lives, as follows:

—  Leasehold land classified as finance lease Shorter of the rem

aining

lease term or useful life

—  Buildings 2% -

—  Leasehold improvements

2.5%

Shorter of the unexpired

lease term or 20%

—  Machinery and equipment
—  Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
—  Motor vehicles

—  Tools and moulds

Annual Report
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12.5%
20%
20%
20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

income statement.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried
at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the
date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes
in the fair value of the investment property are recognised in the income

statement as part of other gains/losses.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 46 to 50 years. Amortisation
of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis

over the period of leases.

FEMBRRME
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2.5

2.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.7 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified
as investment property. Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The

operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined annually by independent
external professional valuers. Fair value is determined based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. Changes in fair values are

recorded in the income statement as part of other gains/losses.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Intangible assets

(0

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include

the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose

identified according to operating segment.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.9 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered

an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

each reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating

unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in the income statement.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate

financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.

(9)

(b)

(©

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to

be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period which are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans
and receivables include ‘trade and bill receivables’, ‘other receivables
and deposits’ and ‘cash and bank balances’ in the consolidated

balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of the

investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.10 Financial assets (Contd)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost

using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are presented in the income statement
within "“other gains/losses” in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the

Group's right to receive payments is established.
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= h Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMFPEHRFRMEE

TESHBERE (&)
210 BHBEE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2
2.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The
translation differences on monetary security are recognised in the
income statement; translation differences on non-monetary securities are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in

the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income

statement when the Group's right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 | Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or

events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The

asset's carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the

loss is recognised in the income statement

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s

credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the income statement.
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| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRMEE

TESHBERE (&)
2,11 IBEEERE(E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2

2.1 1 Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement. If, in
a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or

loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging

instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial
instruments are recognised immediately in the income statement within

other gains/losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement within administrative expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against administrative

expenses in the income statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with

banks and bank overdrafts, if any.
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| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 FEEHBEHSE#®
216 BBEERER

2.16 Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Financial liabilities (including trade payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. An equity instrument is any contract
that does not meet the definition of financial liability and evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period

of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least |2

months after the balance sheet date.

2.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the income statement in the period in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company, its subsidiaries and its associate operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes

provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the relevant tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to

apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is

controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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I' Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations
The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions once the contributions have

been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the
Group's and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,000 per month. The contributions are fully and immediately

vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in the Mainland China. Contributions are
made by the Group on a monthly basis to these state-sponsored
retirement plans based on a percentage of the relevant income of
the relevant employees. The Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions beyond its contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension

obligations payable to retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.20 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(9)

(b)

(©
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Pension obligations (Cont'd)

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited
by those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of

leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, including any market performance
conditions; excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and including the impact of any non-vesting

conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.20 Employee benefits (Contd)

(©

(d)

Share-based compensation (Cont'd)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share

premium when the options are exercised.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected
to be settled within twelve months and are measured at the

amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the

amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the

likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to

passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Leases

(i)  Operating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives

received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on

a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Il - Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.22 Leases (Contd)
(i) Finance leases
The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of

the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current liabilities. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for

each period.

2.23 Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values and are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in the income statement over the period of the relevant
liabilities and (ii) the amount of which the Group is obligated to

reimburse the recipient under the financial guarantee contracts.

2.24 Revenue and income recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns,

rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.24 Revenue and income recognition (Contd)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer; the type

of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Provision of logistics services
Revenue from the provision of logistics services, including freight

forwarding services, is recognised when services are rendered.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(iv) Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders for final dividend and board of directors for interim

dividend.
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U Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRMEE

BHREREE
31 BERBEREZ

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial

performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

(a) Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") with transactions mainly settled in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollar
("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to USD and RMB. Since the HK$ is
pegged to USD, management are of the opinion that the
exchange rate risk exposure arising from USD is relatively

insignificant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3
(9)
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Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk (Contd)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies other than
their own functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign
exchange contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th
June 2011, the Group had certain outstanding forward foreign
currency contracts mainly to sell/purchase US dollars, details of
which have been disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group’s
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables and borrowings
were also denominated in foreign currencies, details of which have

been disclosed in Notes 23, 25, 26 and 29.

At 30th June 201 1, if HK dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$2,171,000 (2010: HK$2,503,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of foreign currency-denominated financial assets and
liabilities. The Directors however are of the opinion that any
changes in fair value of the Group's forward foreign exchange
contracts, as a result of any reasonable changes in exchange rate
between HK dollar and US dollar as at 30th June 2010 and 201 I,

would have no significant financial impact to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank, details
of which are disclosed in Note 25. The Group’s exposure to
changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings,
details of which are disclosed in Note 29. Borrowings carry at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value

interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to
the trend of changes in interest rates. The Group also uses certain
financial derivatives to manage its interest rate risk, details of which

have been disclosed in Note 24.

As at 30th June 2011, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$4 11,000 (2010: HK$323,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on
cash at bank net off with higher/lower interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The Directors are also of the opinion that any
changes in fair value of the Group’s interest rate swap contracts, as
a result of any reasonable changes in interest rates as at 30th June
2010 and 201 |, would have no significant financial impact to the

Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3
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(d)
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Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its
plastic materials which is largely dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to

determine its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and
available-for-sale financial assets included in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk in relation to its financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC, all
derivatives financial instruments are also entered into with these
financial institutions, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution and management does not
expect any losses arising from non-performance by these

counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. As at 30th June 2011, the Group has made certain

deposits for acquisition of properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)

(d)

(¢)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of trade and other
receivables (including deposits made) based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade
and other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the
Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made in these consolidated
financial statements. The Directors are also of the opinion that
deposits are made to credit worthy parties and do not expect non-

performance of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2011, the Company had provided guarantees in
respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$372,370,000 (2010: HK$274,124,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions of
and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources and bank

borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(¢

Annual Report
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Liquidity risk (Contd)

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and long-term.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the
Group. The Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets
and committed banking facilities to ensure the availability of
sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected and material cash
requirements in the ordinary course of business. As at 30th June
2011, the total banking facilities made available to the Group
amounting to HK$516,633,000 (2010: HK$390,401,000) of which
HK$372,370,000 (2010: HK$274,124,000) was being utilised by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BRERER (&
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)
(e) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow, including
interests payments computed using contractual rates, based on the
earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be required
to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the maturity date of
bank borrowings with a repayable on demand clause is based on
agreed schedule repayment set out in the loan agreements,
disregarding the repayment on demand clauses. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the Directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled

repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

<

i

BREREE (&
3.1 MEBEREREE(E)

- ™

(e) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) () REELMEE (E)
Between Between
Within| year [ and 2 years 2and 5 years Total
-FR —EWER MEEER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTER FTER FTER
Group &8
At 30th June 201 | R=E——%~A=1A
Trade payables EIRMAH 102,424 — — 102,424
Other payables and accruals NS RERER 17,635 — — 17,635
Bank borrowings ROEE 326,171 4,246 16,845 347,262
Obligations under finance leases HERERHE 237 — — 237
Derivatives financial instruments fTEEMIA 134 - - 134
Total ek 446,601 4,46 16,845 467,692
At 30th June 2010 RZE-TF A=1H
Trade payables BHENR 97,630 — — 97,630
Other payables and accruals EtEANRBERER 15,125 — = 15,125
Bank borrowings RITEE 238,362 5123 11218 254,703
Obligations under finance leases MEMESRE 473 236 - 709
Derivatives financial instruments TESRMTA 1,967 95 - 2,062
Total Lk 353,557 5454 11218 370,229
Company AF
At 30th June 201 | RZE-—F A=1H
Accruals BiRER 682 — — 682
At 30th June 2010 RZE-TF A=1H
Accruals BiREA 676 - - 676
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments

to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (include current and non-current borrowings as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and bank balances. Total
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance

sheet, plus net debt.

FEMBRRME

MERRER (&
32 BXEBREE

AEENESERESE  RRBA
FEEBERE - JARREHE
BABHMAREE AREFIS
B R BENE A BB AEE
SRA -

AEBEREARE  YRELHE
RENEHELAE - BTHEH
AEEAER  AREAEEHE
XN FRROKSHE  BITHK
FEGEHARITER

AEEMBAELRERAER -
e b R 1 RS 753 WL BR DA 48 B AR
B -EBFEARLEE (BRERE
ERBRMIIMNNHRIENHER)
RERGRA SR - BERRE
@] (MR EER BRI ER
R e

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June RZE——FR-_ZF-ZFFSA=
2011 and 2010: TR AREZRBEEEQT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR
Total borrowings (Note 29) miEs (M4 29) 344,176 253,224
Less: Cash and bank balances B ReRReER
(Note 25) (B¥5E 25) (95,826) (82,589)
Net debt (Evr s 248,350 170,635
Total equity R 462,278 423434
Total capital R 710,628 594,069
Gearing ratio BXRABHEX 35% 29%
The increase in gearing ratio during the year ended 30th June 201 | was RBE_Z——$X A=THILEF
mainly resulted from the increase in the total borrowings during BER - AENEREEEMSIBER

the year.

(BT -

\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the balance
sheet at fair value are required to disclose the fair value measurements

by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1)

*  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)

or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and deposits and other
receivables, and the Group’s current financial liabilities including current
borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals approximate

their fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These

instruments are included in level I.
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Mﬁr Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMTERERMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3 UBEREE (&
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd) 3.3 AFEMI(F)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active WIRERTISEEN SR TA (10
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by BARZNTESB IR NATE
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use- RAMGERZETE - RERMNEES
of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as FAATBRERMZEE (NE) B
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair DB EBNEEME - M E—
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. ERIANARBEMZENMEE

REARABEHE  AZeRmT
RFIAE2RE -

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable M—IEk L IEEAB AL FFREA

market data, the instrument is included in level 3. BEMSEE  AZeRIAIA
F3E -

As at 30th June 2011, the Group's available-for-sale financial asset and RZFE——FXA=1TH 55§

derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial ZAHHENBEERITESRT

instruments. The following table presents the changes in level 3 AENBEFIERRIA - UTR

instruments for the year ended 30th June 201 1. REBE_ZT——FA=THILHF

EAEIEERIANEDS -

Available-for-sale Derivative financial

financial assets instruments Total

AHEEMKEE (TEEMIA nE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT TER TERT

Opening balance Hif & en 690 (4,517) (3,827)
Gains recognised in profit or loss REHERM R — 2,700 2,700
Gains recognised in equity R ER R 439 — 439
Closing balance HR IR KE BR 1,129 (1,817) (688)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equibment
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment with reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from use of these assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will adjust the depreciation charge where useful lives or
residual values vary with previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been

abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and

therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of judgements

and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a
results of

result affect the Group's financial position and

operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the
projected performance and resulting future cash flow projections,
it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(©

(d)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on
the basis of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after
allowing for outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for
reversionary income potential. These methodologies are based upon
estimates of future results and a set of assumptions as to income and
expenses of the property and future economic conditions. The fair value
of each investment property reflects, among other things, rental income
from current leases and assumptions about rental income from future
leases in the light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in

respect of the property.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. Provisions are made where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of the receivables and impairment is recognised in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(¢

)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based on
an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-
downs on inventories are recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the value of the inventories may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
uses its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. The valuation models require the input of
subjective assumptions, including forward foreign exchange
rates, risk free rates and market volatility. Changes in subjective

input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(g

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax charges in the

period in which such estimates have been changed.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

WK 2 # A #

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T TET

Turnover LET
Sales of goods HEEM 1,687,434 1271463
Provision of logistics services RE TR 253 —
1,687,687 1,271,463

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering

plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. Management has determined the
operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are
used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the
business from the operations nature and the type of products perspective,
including the trading of plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of
colorants, pigments and compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”),
manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic products (“Engineering plastics™)

and other corporate and business activities (“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit
that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions
are entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that
would also be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ol | “I
ZEMEHRFRMEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 WHERkIHER (&)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments BE_T——S A=-THLFERHE
for the year ended 30th June 201 | is as follows: RERKERREZAZIMENHE
BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% EeH IRER Hits N !

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Turnover EEE

— Gross revenue - BHE 1,388,226 466,638 518,621 2,171 2,375,656

~ Inter-segment revenue - NHPREEE (281,878) (156,964) (249,127) — (687,969)
Revenue from external customers MR PR 1,106,348 309,674 269,494 2,171 1,687,687
Segment results NEEE 8,033 20,179 26,897 (1,208) 53,901
Share of loss of an associated company 2 EHE & DR BEDHE = — — (184) (184)
Finance income g6 53 184 2 — 239
Finance costs HEER (4,877) (1,335) (1,334) (68) (7,614)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BEART, (B8) 3,209 19,028 25,565 (1,460) 46,342
Income tax expense PiEx (10,547)
Profit for the year RE g7 35,795
Non-controlling interests I (4,079)
Profit attributable to equity ARAIREEME R T

holders of the Company 31,716

102/ Annual Report
FE#HE 10/ 11



| I

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments

for the year ended 30th June 201 | is as follows: (Cont'd)

5
Trading Colorants
g% EeH

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEMBRRME

kEkaHEN &)
BE-_T——G®XA-TRLFERE
RERKERRE ZAZIRENHE
BT (&

Engineering
plastics Others Group
IREH Htt LN

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FER FER FER FER
Other information: HEEH :
Capital expenditure BARX 6,203 3218 30,471 1,086 40,978
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment REE 312 8,395 4,014 1,230 13,951
Amortisation of leasehold land MELTHR LM
and land use rights ERE 77 197 2 78 384
(Reversal of)/provision for FERE
impairment of inventories (BE),/ B (127) 85 (167) 122 (87)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment & BRI (E
of trade receivables £/ (BE) 229 (162) — — 67
Unrealised fair value gain on TEERIAR
derivative financial ERATE
instruments gz (2,700) — — — (2,700)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements . .W
S E T E R | L

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 WHERkIBER (&
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments RZE——FAA=THRBLEEREL
as at 30th June 201 | is as follows: ERREZAZINGENHERDT -
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% EeH IREN Htt FEHE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TiER TER

Segment assets NEEE 387,632 270,932 228,068 62,116 948,748
Total assets BEE 948,748
Segment liabilities AEHEE 88,412 26,114 23,135 4,633 142,294
Borrowings BE 225,161 22,892 91,937 4,186 344,176
Total liabilities mak 486,470

104/ Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRMEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5 WKakoHES #B)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments BE_T-IZE A-THLEEERHE
for the year ended 30th June 2010 is as follows: RERRERREZFZINREDHE
R
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH TiREHR Hity r&E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FET FET FET
Turnover EEHE
— Gross revenue - DERIEE 776,985 282,444 248212 1,334 1,308,975
~ Inter-segment revenue - DEEHE (4,183) (17,578) (15,751) — (37.512)
Revenue from external customers bR P iaR 772,802 264,866 23246 1334 1271463
Segment results PDEER 15,745 17,624 21,076 (3267) 51,178
Finance income g6 30 217 | 6 254
Finance costs HBER (1946) (1285) (507) — (3738)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREATER, (B1]) 13,829 16,556 20,570 (3261) 47,694
Income tax expense REX (16:899)
Profit for the year RERF 30,795
Non-controlling interests TR (2443)
Profit attributable to equity A EY A aywll
holders of the Company 28,352
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 WakoHER (&
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments BE_Z-—ZEX A=THLEFERHE
for the year ended 30th June 2010 is as follows: RERKERREZFZINBRENDHE
BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% 67 Ti%H it r&HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TET TET TET
Other information: HEpEH
Capital expenditure BARX 6,823 | 482 30,647 313 39,265
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment (restated) ZEE (F3) 326 9,072 4212 1,079 14,689
Amortisation of leasehold MELTH Rt
land and land use rights &Rz B H
(restated) (&31) 82 185 24 78 369
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEEZEH — = — 400 400
Impairment of available-for-sale A i 1 B
financial asset BERE = = = 160 160
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE — — — 2,000 2,000
(Reversal of)/provision for FERE (BE) /
impairment of inventories pii (2,707) 855 177 2,329 654
Reversal of impairment BH RN
of trade receivables BERD = (287) — — (287)
Unrealised fair value loss/(gain) on fTEERMIA
derivative financial AEHLQTE
instruments BE/ () 910 — 2 (295) 637
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) ®

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments
as at 30th June 2010 is as follows:

FEMBRRME

WK o HER (8)
RIE-ZERAZTHRHBRERL
BRREZAZIREDHERMT

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH TRBE Hit r5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL TETL TET TET
Segment assets NBEE 357,753 238927 160,512 55,752 812,944
Total assets BEE 812,944
Segment liabilities AEEE 82,390 23,586 24,990 5,320 136,286
Borrowings 5 & 185,832 23487 43,905 — 253,224
Total liabilities BafE 389,510

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers
attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 201 | is approximately
HK$1,057,547,000 (2010: HK$815,802,000), and the total of its revenue from
external customers from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately
HK$630,140,000 (2010: HK$455,661,000).

At 30th June 2011, the total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets
and rights arising under insurance contracts) located in Hong Kong is
approximately HK$ 126,506,000 (2010: HK$94,677,000), and the total of these
non-current assets located in other locations (mainly the PRC) is

approximately HK$86,765,000 (2010: HK$87,577,000).

AERNEEREN -HE-T——F

RA=TBLEEEREEBZIBEP
W34 51,057,647,0008 L (ZF—%
% : 815,802,000/ L) + MR B E it
B(ZZERTE) 2IFEFPRENA
630,140,000% = (= T — T &
455,661,000 7T) °

/N

R-ZZ——FX A=+ Be@MIA
REERBEENMNES 2R E
EWREERIEERRBRANEEZ
i) #5126,506,0008 T (ZE—%
% : 94,677,000 7T) - MAZREA MR
(FERFR)ZUEFRBEENR
86,765,000% & ( = T — T &
87,577,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements .
EAMBRERE ;
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HittlkA
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#n TERT
Rental income HERA 3,364 2,880
Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately REME 2 HHEFR & £4125,0008 7T
HK$ 125,000 (2010: HK$263,000). (ZZ—T4 : 263,000 L) °
7  OTHER GAINS, NET 7 HEftls-FE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TERT
Fair value gains on investment REWMEN R FEW (M5 18)
properties (Note |8) 3,093 1,422
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA
- forward foreign exchange contracts and —FHEEEREZINE
interest rate swap contracts held BEE K R A=
for trading HHEH
- unrealised —KREH 2,700 (637)
- realised -2EHR 2,584 919
Net exchange gains HMVE M & F FE 4316 3,112
Provision for impairment of an available-for- A HEMBEERE
sale financial asset (Note 20) R (KiEE20) = (160)
Provision for impairment of B EEREERS
intangible assets (Note 19) (MtEE19) — (2,000)
Write-back of other payables Hofth & 15 3B B = 2,000
12,693 4,656
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBRRMEE
EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BUEEIZHAX
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
(Restated)
(E751)
Cost of inventories sold excluding HEFEXRAR
manufacturing costs (TEREEEKSR) 1,459,329 1,048,043
Amortisation of leasehold land and METH Rt
land use rights (Note 17) EREEE (ME17) 384 369
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note [9) BREESN (ME19) = 400
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET I & 2,132 2,078
Depreciation: e
- Owned property, plant and equipment —BEVE  BERRE 13,438 14,404
- Property, plant and equipment -REREMEREZ
under finance leases ME - BB KR 513 285
Provision for /(reversal of) impairment B2 EYGORE
of trade receivables Kig/ (BE) 67 (287)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment FERERERE
of inventories (BE) /B (87) 654
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment REZ (hw) /BB (55) 400
Employee benefits expenses, including EERMZH
directors’ emoluments (Note 14) (BRESEM:) (MHF14) 91,345 82,612
Operating lease rentals in respect of THEREFIEEHERS
land and buildings 13,243 10,683
Repairs and maintenance expenses HERRERX 3,707 3,352
Transportation and packaging expenses BHRBEAX 20,019 18,042
Travelling and office expenses ERRPRAERS 7,547 5,857
Utility expenses KEFXZ 12,272 11,697
Other expenses Hh& A 25,989 29,232
Total cost of sales, distribution costs and HERN « DHEEAR
administrative expenses TR L 1,649,843 1,227,821
Representing: &
Cost of sales HERA 1,520,155 1,110,389
Distribution costs 7 SHAKA 46,520 37,554
Administrative expenses TE % 83,168 79,878
1,649,843 1,227,821
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

9  FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Ndl®
—

9 MBKENEH

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Finance income: T
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITERABWA 239 254
Finance costs: HMSER :
— Interest on bank borrowings wholly FREFRNEZHEEZRIT
repayable within five years EEZHE (7,599) (3,686)
— Interest element of finance leases —REHEN S M (15) (52)
(7,614) (3738)
Finance costs - net M%ER-—FE (7,375) (3,484)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2010:

[6.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year Taxation on the

Group’s subsidiaries established and operate in Mainland China has been

calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of

taxation as applicable to the relevant subsidiaries.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement

10 BEXH
EBENEBTHREF A ERTOER
BHREASZT AR (ZE-25: 8
AZTRER) G ERE - RETIBIR
EAEERFREANMRTRELZHE
REZREE G ERBEN R BH
BARZEAREHE -

BRRERZHBAHR

represents:

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET

Current tax: REFRE :
Hong Kong profits tax BEENER 1,945 4,118
PRC corporate income tax FEI PTG 6,930 8,123
Under-provision in previous years NEFERETR 638 450
9,513 12,691
Deferred tax (Note 30) BIERIE (FfEE 30) 1,034 4,208
10,547 16,899
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il Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as

FEMBRRME

10 BHEXH ®)
AEBEBRBAEN 2 HERRER
BEBNGHRZBERMAE 2 BHHE

follows: ZEBINT
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Profit before income tax Rt A 7 46,342 47,694
Calculated at a taxation rate EWE16.5% (ZE—FTF :
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) 16.5%) tE 1B 7,646 7,870
Effect of different tax rates FEAARB R 2 8
in Mainland China 1,871 2,135
Income not subject to tax BARB WA (668) (485)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes R AJH1HE 2 37 1,497 1,265
Tax losses not recognised AERZMBER 621 842
Utilisation of previously ERNERERHISEE
unrecognised tax losses (807) (827)
Under-provision in previous years NEEERETR 638 450
Reversal of tax losses previously recognised LA B 2 #E72 %4 7% 5 18 % [ 250 2,722
Recognition of tax losses previously FER AR R IR B 18
not recognised (1,950) -
Others Hity 1,449 1,927
10,547 16,899

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$6,681,000 for the
year ended 30th June 2011 (2010: HK$6,789,000).

11 AEREELRF

BE-_ZT——F AZTALFE i
AR DRI BHREK 2D AREEMNEF
56,681,008 & (Z % — % F :
6,789,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

-‘J
=

12 DIVIDENDS 12 KR
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
Ti#n TET
Interim, paid, of HK1.0 cent Bk ER B =A% 1.0 Bl
(2010: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share (ZZ—ZF :1.0%8) 3,692 3,692
Final, proposed, of HK1.0 cent BRI S GR 1.0 4L
(2010: HK2.0 cents) per (ZZ—ZF : 2.0%1b)
ordinary share 3,692 7,384
7,384 11,076
Notes: BifzE
(@) At a meeting held on 25th February 2011, the Directors declared an interim @ RZE——H5_A-THAHETZEE

dividend of HKI.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months
ended 3Ist December 2010, which was paid during the year and has been
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th June
201 1.

At a meeting held on 25th February 2010, the Directors declared an interim
dividend of HKI.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months
ended 3 st December 2009.

At a meeting held on 27th September 2011, the Directors proposed a final
dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share, totaling HK$3,692,000. This proposed
dividend was not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements and
will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 30th
June 2012.

At a meeting held on 28th September 2010, the Directors proposed a final
dividend of HK2.0 cents per share, totalling HK$7,384,000, which was paid during
the year and has been reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the
year ended 30th June 201 I.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

L EEEHREBEE-T-TF+ A
St—BUEAEARETHAREER
1.0/l 3,692,000 75 © HIBR S
ERAFERSM  WERBEZT—
—ERA=TALEFEZRBEFFH

%M%i
:+—E¢Rﬂﬂﬁ¥¢ﬂ% g3

1.0/l + £3,692,000/% Tt °

RZB——FNA-++LRABT2EH
b EEZEBRERDRESR.0F
flll » ££3,692,000/ 7T ° WIBEHRE S
W AR R RERPIERMRSE
%ﬁi:%—:iﬁﬁi+ﬁﬁ¢§2
REEHH AR

R=E-BFNA-+N\BRAZEE
b EERBREAHRE TR0
fli - #£7,384,000/ 7T ° LLIEKR B ER
REERXA  LERBE-F——4F
RAZtRLEEZ RBUFFHE -
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to

equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

13 BREF

Ex
BRERRM IR R A BCR AR R N
NERTETE BB 2 NEY &G

shares in issue during the year & o
2011 2010

Profit attributable to equity holders NARREMEEN (FET)

of the Company (HK$'000) 31,716 28,352
Weighted average number FREETEBRR

of ordinary shares in issue 2 T 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings per share BREKREF (FREM)

(HK cents per share) 8.59 7.68
Diluted #E

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive
potential ordinary shares arising from the Company's share options. Dilutive
earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2011 and 2010 equal basic
earnings per share as the exercise of the outstanding share options would be

anti-dilutive.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTSYS)

AAEBRBEANE  BUHCHRITER
Bz g FHOEELBR  URRAE
EBBERNCARTEBREESRE
e NEE-T——FAA=TAK=
Z-ZERA=ZTHIMEFE - BT
EATEEREARBEIZE RUtM
BEE EREERNGSMERER

B -

14 BERAXHE (BREEEH2)

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

Wages, salaries and other allowances TE  HoREMZR 87,261 78,805
Pension costs Nl N 4,053 3715
Share-based compensation expense PARR 19 32 6 B 2 31 92
91,345 82,612
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements N ﬂm
FEMBHRRMEE
I5 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15 EERAEEBAEZHE
(a) Directors’ emoluments @) EFHE
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_Z——F/ A=THLEE
ended 30th June 201 | is set out below: BUEEZMEWT
Salaries, other Employer’s
allowances and contribution

benefits in kind  Discretionary to pension

E0 IR bonuses scheme
Name of Director Fees HARHK BAIBE EXYEKE Total
EEzE nwe ENFE f A P ok

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr HUI Sai Chung AT RE S 4 650 2,820 — 273 3,743
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong ATE A 650 2,820 — 273 3,743
DrWONG ChiYing, Anthony BETEEL — 2,178 10 158 2,346
Mr LAl Kam Wah RipELE — 2,178 — 104 2,282
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBAL — 1,523 88 I5I 1,762
Mr NG Chi Ming (Note) REALE (M) — 1,339 10 161 1,510
Independent By

Non- Executive Directors FHTEE

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul gE%LE 200 — — — 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIXFESE & 150 — — — 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmgEkts 150 — — — 150
Total e 1,800 12,858 108 1,120 15,886
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I5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Contd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

15 EBREEEEAEZHE (&

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year

o) EEHE (E)
BE-F-BEAASTALER

ended 30th June 2010 is set out below: BUuEZEZMEMT :
Salaries, other Emplovyer's
allowance sand contribution
benefits in kind  Discretionary to pension
- bonuses scheme
Name of Director Fees EfbEBiR BTRTE BEHRAKS Total
EELH we BYH & EoprAAl R ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET TET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr HUI Sai Chung ATt A 650 2,783 — 268 3,701
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong ATEL A 650 2,783 — 268 3,701
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BETEEL — 2,093 — 131 2224
Mr LAl Kam Wah RipEL s — 2,093 — 84 2177
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEEXL — 1,478 — 146 624
Mr NG Chi Ming (Note) REALE (M) — 1,242 — 128 1,370
Independent By
Non- Executive Directors FHITEE
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul AEEEE 150 — — — 150
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRikdE L& 100 — — — 100
Mr CHING Yu Lung BELE 100 — — 100
Total k] 1,650 12,472 — 1,025 5,147

No Directors waived any emoluments during the year (2010: Nil). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office during the year (2010: Nil).

Note:

Appointed on 3rd September 2010

RAEREALBEESWENE M
2 (ZE-2F : 8) RAFER
REBEBEN FERE S B M
ERKREEEBU HE(CE-F
8-

PEE
R-E-ZFENA=HEZE

Annual Report
FEHRE 10/ 11

\115



116/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

I5 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Cont'd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group

for the year include four (2010: four) Directors whose emoluments are

disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and

payable to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

i

15 EENREEEEAEBZME (@

(b)

RERBHMAL

AEEAR  ERANRSHFMAL
B (ZE-FF  AOf) KE
2 EMEERN EXRIN 22
RE - SRTH—URSHEMALR

EFEEZHMFEBLT

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Salaries, other allowances - EpEi Rk
and benefits in kind B R 1,972 [,902
Discretionary bonus HIBIEAL 612 405
Pension costs RIREK A 236 228
2,820 2,535

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (2010: HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000).

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals

(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2010: Nil).

Annual Report
FERE 10711

TATZHERA—BRTET
—RLE-BEEL(CT-TF:
“ELTET-RATE=A8ET)
ZBERN  AEEWER ERAL
(BREFREMER) XM EE

RREEMARERRERM 2 E
(ZF—FF: §)

yd
B -_l



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEUBHRTRMEE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y%  BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold ~ Machinery  and office
Leasehold - improvements and  equipment Motor ~ Tools and
land and buldings BE  equpment &k RER vehicles moulds Total
BETHERT  NXEE BERRE BLZRE AE IAREA it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&5 (&31)
At It uly 2009 RIZENELA-R
Cost, as previously reported HHERZAE 80712 9552 172813 1959 9720 3916 296309
Effect on adoption of REMEA QL
HKAS 17 (Amendment) 2175 (BiAK) 22 9,851 — — — — — 9851
Cost, asrestated KA (E3) 90,563 9550 172813 19,59 9720 3906 306160
Accumulated depreciation, RAERZ
as previously reported ZithE (21.264) (7058)  (143041)  (17.159) (6841 (2955)  (198318)
Effect on adoption REMEE QL
of HKAS 17 (Amendment) F17% (BiR) c¥8 (283%) = — = = = (2836)
Accumulated depreciation, 2itiE (85)
as restated Q4100)  (7058)  (43041)  (I70%9)  (684l)  (2955)  (201,I54)
Net book amount, as restated ~~~ REFE (E71) 66463 2494 BN 247 2879 %I 105,006
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEUBHRTRMEE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

rm

16 % BERRE @)

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold ~ Machinery  and office
Leasehold  improvements and  equipment Motor ~ Tools and
land and buildings BE  equipment KAk RER vehicles moulds Total
HELHEERT NXEE BERRE BOERE RE IARER BE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Tén  TEn  TEn  Téx Tén  TEr  TER
(Restated) (Restated)
(&5 (&5
Year ended 30th June 2010 HEZ-SERR=THLER
Opening net book amount, HHIER B

as previously reported REHE 59,448 24% 1,172 2437 2879 96! 97,991
Effect on adoption RRMER G E

of HKAS 17 (Amendment) 7% (BiX) 278 7015 — ~ — — — 7015
Opening net book amount, BOEEHE

s restated (&31) 66,463 2494 1,172 2437 2879 9| 105,006
Additions B 30,653 n 588 902 604 110 BI79
Transfer from investment properties BB REAN%

(Note 18) (Hiz 18) 1950 = = = = = 1.950
Transfer to investment properties ~ BBERENE (3,056) = = = = = (3,056)
Disposalsfwite-off e /M (18) (624) — ) — — (650)
Depreciation, as restated & (E5) (2492) (801) (9.265) (1,060) (938) (133)  (14689)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 93500 1391 21,095 2271 2545 938 121,740
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I6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEUBHRTRMEE

16 W% BERRE (&

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold ~ Machinery  and office
Leasehold - improvements and  equipment Motor ~ Tools and
land and buldings BE  equpment &k RER vehicles moulds Total
BETHRET NERE RERRE BOERE HE TARER g
HKB00O  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Tér  Thx Tér  Téxr  Téx Tér  Thx
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E51)
At 30th June 2010 RZE-FEXA=1A
Cost, as previously reported HHERZAE 110321 878 168218 2004 8372 395 319497
Effect on adoption REMEE QL
of HKAS 17 (Amendment) 2175 (BIR) 278 9,055 — — — — — 9,055
Cost, as restated BA (E31) 119,376 878 163218 2004 8371 395 38752
Accumulated depreciation, RAERZ
as previously reported 2itHhE (23,126) (1395)  (4703)  (17775) (5827) (3016)  (204262)
Effect on adoption REMEE QL
of HKAS 17 (Amendment) F17% (BIR) c¥8 (2750) = — = = = (2750)
Accumulated depreciation, 2itHE (85)
as restated (25,876) (7395)  (4703) (7775 (8)  (0l6)  (20701)
Net book amount, as restated BRI/ (1) 93500 1,391 21,095 2271 2545 938 121,740
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

16 % BERRE @)

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold ~ Machinery ~ and office
Leasehold improvements and  equipment Motor  Tools and
and and buildings BE  equipment B RER vehicles moulds Total
HETHRET NXEE HERRE BOERE AE IARKE 8%
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz - TEn - TEn TEn TEn
(Restated) (Restated)
(&5)) (E3)
Year ended 30th June 201 HE-Z-——ErR=THLER
Opening net book amount, RHIERZ B
as previously reported REHE 87,195 1,391 21,09 2271 2,545 938 15,435
Effect on adoption RRMEBE R
of HKAS 17 (Amendment) 7% (BiX) 278 6,305 - — - - — 6,305
Opening net book amount, BNRESE
as restated (E71) 93500 1,391 21,095 21 2545 938 120740
Addtions L)l - 19,242 13492 682 2142 5 35,563
Additions from acquisition of ARE-HBAT
a subsidiary g - 8 — 129 — = yly!
Exchange differences EXZEH 3130 2 784 8l 9 6 4114
Transfer from investmen properties  ER AR ENZ
(Notel8) (R 18) 3,050 - - - - - 3,050
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERERENF (1333) = = = = = (1,333)
Disposalshwrite-off e /M - - (46) (55) (85) 4) (190)
Depreciation & (2814) (609) (8213) (1,067) (LI (137) (13,951)
Closing net book amount PRBERE 95,533 20,128 27,112 2,041 3,583 808 149,205
At 30th June 201 RZF——ExA=1A
Cost WA 1440 W05 162759 19,032 9251 1921 344448
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (28,907) (6917)  (135,647) (16,991) (5,668) (L113) (195243
Net book amount BHFE 95,533 20,128 2,11 2041 3,583 808 149205
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Net book value of leasehold land and buildings are analysed as follows:

FEMBRRME

16 W% BERSKE &)
RELHRESE Y EEESFNOT -

Group
£8
As at As at As at
30th June 30th June I'st July
2011 2010 2009
R=B-——-F R-T-ZTF —TTNF
AH=TH ~NA=TH +HA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TAET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z51) (&7))
Leasehold land and buildings EEBRAZHE
in Hong Kong, held on: THRETF
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +EER+FZHE 43312 41,549 14,836
Leasehold land and buildings EFEBEZHE
in the PRC, held on: T RET
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTHE7HE 52,221 51,951 51,627
95,533 93,500 66,463
(a) Depreciation expense of HK$10,476,000 (2010: HK$!1,148,000) has (a) ITEEFH10,476,0008 T (=T —
been included in cost of sales, HK$394,000 (2010: HK$331,000) in ZTF ¢ 11,148,0008 7T) E BIEE
distribution costs and HK$3,081,000 (2010 (restated): HK$3,210,000) in SHERR » 394,000 T (ZE—F
administrative expenses. % : 331,000/87T) EBEED $#HK
AR3,081,0008T (T~ F
(Z71]) : 3,210,000/ 1) B BIETE
THRX -
(b) As at 30th June 201 I, the cost and accumulated depreciation of property, ) RZTBE——FSA=1+H £&H
plant and equipment held by the Group under finance leases amounted BEREHEEEZDE BER
to approximately HK$2,736,000 (2010: HK$2,736,000) and REBIHRAREAHEDRL A
HK$ 1,653,000 (2010: HKS$1,140,000) respectively. 2,736,000 . (=& — & F :
2,736,000/ 7.) K 1,653,000/% T
(ZZE—FF : 1,140,000% L) °
() As at 30th June 2011, the net book amount of property, plant and (c) RZZE—ERA=1+H A&EE

equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$23,724,000
HK$23,333,000).

(2010 (restated):

BR @ )% (B 42 58 423,724,000/ T
(ZZ—ZFF (F5) : 23,333,000
BT)Z2Y%  BERZBEDER
FR1T - BAKENBRIEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBRRMEE
|7 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17 HEL R IHmERE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid AEEREEL MR L FERE s #ER
operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows: REEMNLEHERE HREFES
T
Group
£H
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
(Restated)
(&51)
At beginning of the year, as previously reported 4] » A &R 21,005 15,998
Effect on adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) EHRMEE G ERE 17 5
(BFIR) 2 &2 (6,305) (7,015)
Beginning of the year, as restated F4 (&%) 14,700 8,983
Additions N = 6,086
Transfer to investment properties EREREME (3,646) —
Exchange differences bE X 2R 643 —
Amortisation # 55 (384) (369)
At end of the year FR 11,313 14,700
Geographical analysis: & DA -
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
(Restated)
(E51)
Leasehold land in Hong Kong, held on: EEERHAZHELH
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TFEELTEZHE [,144 1,177
Land use rights in the PRC, held on: FERBIRA 2 i
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTEZHEE 10,169 13,523
11,313 14,700
As at 30th June 2011, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use RZZE——F A=+H HEITHK
rights pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to + 3 R #E AR % B 492,870,000/ T
approximately HK$2,870,000 (2010 (restated): HK$2,788,000). (ZZ—ZTF (F5) : 2,788,000 7T) 2

BHRTRT  RAKEBRBRITEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME
I8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 RENME
Group
£
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
(Restated)
(E71)
At beginning of the vear =) 30,560 25430
Addition Zm 545
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEAYE BB KRG
and leasehold land and land use rights TS T4 &%+ b A 4,979 3,056
Revaluation gain of property, plant and ME - BERHRER
equipment and leasehold land and ME 3 N L i A
land use rights on transfer BREREME
to investment properties 2 Bt 1,629 2,602
Fair value gains on investment REMEZ
properties (Note 7) nNEEKRE (R 7) 3,093 1,422
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BREME  BER&E (3,050) (1,950)
At end of the year FR 42,626 30,560

(a) The investment properties were revalued at 30th June 2011 by Chung, (a) FAEEXHREVEN_T——F
Chan & Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer NAZTRBBYEEEEMEE
Valuations were based on current prices in an active market. TREEEBMENERERE

E" o
(b) As at 30th June 2011, the fair value of investment properties pledged as b) RZF——FRA=1H &KE®

security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$10,672,000 (2010: HK$9,252,000).

=%
L BEE FE 410,672,000 7T (=
ZE—F4E 9,252,000 T) C K
FiRT BEAEBRERTEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

(c) The Group's interests in investment properties at their book values are

18 RENE (&

(c) AKERRBEWME  ERREE

analysed as follows: AMWT :
Group
£F
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBEHR
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTEZHEE 31,130 30,560
In PRC, held on: EFERE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTHZHEE 11,496 —
42,626 30,560
(d) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable (d BREFAHHEALEHE KKK
operating leases are as follows: EEKBERENT -
Group
£
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Not later than one year —FR 2,118 1,958
Later than one year and not —FRETERDEF
later than five years 907 555
3,025 2513
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1 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
! ZEUBHRRME
19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BVEE
Group
E3L]
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Technical know-how 9l A0 38
Opening net book amount HIf AR E % B = 2,400
Amortisation (Note (a)) iy (M) — (400)
Impairment (Note (b)) RE (KEb) — (2,000)
Closing net book amount HRBR S (B = —
Cost 2% 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt EH (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated Impairment ZEtRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount FRED%(E — —
Gooduwill [k
Opening net book amount HIARE % B = =
Addition (Note 31(c)) #hn (& 31(c) 18 —
Impairment E (18) —
Closing net book amount HRBR S (& = —
Cost 2% 18 —
Accumulated Impairment ZEtRE (18) —
Net book amount RREHE = —
Notes : Pifzr
(a) Amortisation of the Group’s technical know-how has been included in cost of (a) AEERMAZBHEOEEHEK
sales. 7N
(b) During the year ended 30th June 2010, the Directors reviewed the carrying b) RBE-_ZT-FTFAA=THILEE

N EFCMARMARZ REEYLR
REREECHAETRESR - Fit
FRABEL -

amount of the technical know-how and considered that the carrying amount of
the asset would exceed its recoverable amount and an impairment charge was

recognised accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

Li'i A2
W)=y

¥y

20 THREEMBEE

Group

£
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
At Ist July KRtA—H 690 850
Impairment HE — (160)
Net gains transfer to equity L Py Eop A Gt 439 —
At 30th June RANA=+H 1,129 690

Available-for-sale financial asset represents a 3.6% equity interest in an unlisted

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is denominated

in HK dollar.

21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries - Company

JHEENBEERRNERBR LR
ERftcFETRRZAED 2 =HiNE
@HoWEBRUBTREN -

21 EUMBARARRRE
(a) HIBRAIRE—RA

Unlisted shares, at cost

FEMBED  BRA

Company
N
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
62,711 62,711

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June

2011 are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

(b)  Amounts due from subsidiaries - Company

The balances are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

The amounts are mainly denominated in HK dollar.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HFEMBmRMEE
INVENTORIES 22 RE
Group
£5
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAT
Trading stocks BRRBERE 168,237 175,661
Raw materials B 131,892 82,013
Finished goods B 30,185 21,172
330,314 278,846

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in

the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately

HK$1,520,242,000 (2010: HK$1,109,735,000).

Reversal of provision for inventories amounted to HK$87,000 (2010: Nil) for
the year, which have been included in cost of sales in the consolidated income

statement.

Write-down of inventories amounted to HK$NIl (2010: 654,000) for the year,
which have been included in cost of sales in the consolidated income

statement.

Inventories amounting to HK$265,382,000 (2010: HK$199,541,000) were held

under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (Note 29).

NEREWER M E KA RERAH

Y2 FEERARE E£4)51,520,242,0007
(ZZE—ZF :1,109,735,000/ 7T) °

REBARFEEDS7, 0008 (T —F

dl

F ) JFEEREES  TRGAKE
RAHERARH AR -
AEBAFEIERE Wﬁﬁ(

F 1 654,000 7T) 0 I /\Mﬂz i'%m
HERAR ALK -

4 265,382,000 L (Z T — T F :

199,541,000 70) 2 Tr B RIR {5 5T &
RITER 2L PR (ME29) -

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 EZERURREVRER

Group

]
2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables Z 5 e R 245901 218,650
Less: provision for impairment of receivables B EAGKRERE (2,115) (2,088)
243,786 216,562
Bills receivable R E & 32,829 21,983
276,615 238,545
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

Ndl®
il

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Contd) 23 ESRURKREWRE (&)

128/

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

BORBFNEAENTIEBRE

fir

currencies:
Group
£E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FATT
HK dollar BT 105,875 112,157
Renminbi AR 120,124 78,161
US dollar ETT 19,902 28,332
245,901 218,650

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as

the Group has a large number of customers.

The majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The
remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The

ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

BHRUS  REERA D FERD -

HRAKERAREZEFE  FILE
HEBFLEEEBHET AR -

AEEARHNHEENEERRA=TEN
TH  ERNEARINRRELFA
T - BERKFRERA ZRERATN
T

Group
£5

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Below 90 days 0—90H 220,939 202,931
91 - 180 days 91 — 180 H 19,751 10,000
Over 180 days #8180 H 5211 5719
245,901 218,650

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about the counterparty default

rates. The existing counterparties do not have significant default in the past.
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Contd)

As of 30th June 2011, trade receivables of HK$63,162,000 (2010:
HK$62,729,000) were past due but not considered to be impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent

history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

23 EZRURKREUEER @)

R-ZE——&< A=+H EHEKR
63,162,000 © (= T — & & :

62,729,000/ 7T) & E @ BB 37 R ME -
WERBYRZEARIEEEREN:
BNBURP o WEE S ERKNERR
AT

Group

£E
201 | 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET

Past due by peIRet]

| - 30 days 1—30H 39,145 47,215
31 - 60 days 31—60H 13,475 5,756
Over 60 days & 60 A 10,542 9,758
63,162 62,729

As of 30th June 2011, trade receivables of HK$2,115000 (2010:
HK$2,088,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$2, I 15,000
(2010: HK$2,088,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate
to a number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult

economic situations. These trade receivables have been past due by more than
60 days.

RZB——FRA=Z+RH  EHEUR
2,115,000 7T (—F—F4: 2,088,000
BIL)BERE - RZF——F~A=T+
B BEE2EH21150008 7T (ZF—
T4 2,088,000%87) ° EAIREMNE
SEBFERRE R BERUINEER
SETNBLRF - WEEERCANEE
#B60 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

Ndl®
il

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Contd) 23 ESRURKREWRE (&)

130/

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group

AREZESRERRERGEES N

is as follows: N
Group
&= H
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
At beginning of the year =) 2,088 3617
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment REEE, (BE) 67 (287)
Receivables written off as uncollectible WsE3 AR s Bl 2 UL R (69) (1,242)
Exchange difference EHER 29
At end of the year FR 2,115 2,088

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

EREBEZIBBEFER—BNATH
A BATIIEEREN

Group

£8
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHETT
HK dollar T 1,952 | 450
US dollar e 1,492 5237
Renminbi AR 29,385 15,296
32,829 21,983

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is

no recent history of default on bills receivable.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bills of exchange
amounting to approximately HK$3,883,000 (2010: HK$2,285,000) with
recourse in exchange for cash as at 30th June 201 |. The transactions have

been accounted for as collateralised bank advances (Note 29).
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. ..i i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS fTEEMIA
Group
&=
2010
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE & BE BfE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FET FET
Held for trading BIEHE
— Forward foreign exchange —INEERHEH
contracts (Note (i) (BE&EG)) 3,113 4,695 1,755 3,836
— Interest rate swaps (Note (ii)) —FEEHEL
(= (ii)) — 235 — 2,436
3,113 4,930 1,755 6,272
Notes: B3 -
(i)  Forward foreign exchange contracts iy MNERHBEH

As at 30th June 2011, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange

contracts mainly to sell/purchase US dollars and purchase Euro. The maximum

notional principal amounts of these outstanding forward foreign exchange

contracts at 30th June 201 | were as follows:

RZZE——$XA=1TH AEEFX
RUHNEERANEEUE BEETR
BB -R-F——F R A=ZTHLT
ARBNEERE N BRREALHE
e

Group
£

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars THEABTAEAET 2,304,900 2,123,550
Sell US dollars for HK dollars HEETUABEAET 990,600 382,200
Sell HK dollars for Euro SHEBITLAE ABUT — 9,265
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Notes: (Contd)

(i) Interest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at

30th June 201 | were as follows:

24 TEERMIA (B
M ()

(iy FIRBEHEL

RZE——FRA=THRERZYA
KEMANZRERSEDT

Group

£8
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHT

Pay interest at fixed rates and PATE T 1| 2% 52 A5 51L&
receive interest at floating rates I LAF B I = U BRI B, 35,000 85,000
25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 BeRBITER
Group Company
£E AFE

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FATT THER FATT
Cash on hand RetEsn 243 220 — —
Bank balances IRITHE R 95,583 82,369 135 170
95,826 82,589 135 170

Annual Report
FERE 10711



Ll

26

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOMTSREME
25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Cont'd) 25 BReRBITER B
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies: ReRBITHEBATIEB REL -
Group Company
&= YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET
HK dollar AT 20,498 13,445 135 170
Renminbi AR 38,659 45,151 — —
US dollar e 36,401 23,759 — —
Others Hity 268 234 — —
95,826 82,589 135 170
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. ROIHEBREEARTERZZBNE
The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi are deposited ROFME - AEENARBARENU R
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these Renminbi denominated ERBROTEBRNRPBEZRITET - Kt
balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of these funds out of the MARBRE 2 ERRINE - U EE
PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC AEeEHTFREXBRPERNER
government. ZINEE HIHRIF
TRADE PAYABLES 26 EZRNAR

A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit

period of 30 to 90 days to the Group.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

ABOHEBERLTERERS K TAKE
ZEH-RR/R=TENTH-

EHRNRNKRONAOT

Group

£E
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Below 90 days 0—90H 101,710 97,035
91 - 180 days 91— 180 H 218 45
Over 180 days #818 180 H 496 550
102,424 97,630
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

26 TRADE PAYABLES (Contd) 26
The carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

Wi

BEZEAR (@)
BORMR RAEREATEMES
WATIEREREN -

L

(T
- .

Group
£E
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FET
HK dollar BT 9,064 12,075
Renminbi AR 16,648 13,022
US dollar X7 76,702 72,533
Euro BT 10 —
102,424 97,630
27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 BARRAREE
Share capital BRA
Number of
ordinary Share capital
shares of nominal value
HK$0.10 each HK$°000
BREE B A E B
0108 T2 HK$’000
EERHE TER
Authorised: EERA
At Ist July 2009, 30th June 2010 and 201 | RZZZNFLHA—H"
“E-TFERZT——FXA=TH 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIREERE
At Ist July 2009, 30th June 2010 and 201 | RZZETNFLA—B -
“E-TFERZT——FA=1TH 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium R E
HK$°000
TET
At Ist July 2009, 30th June 2010 and 201 | RZZETNFLA—RB -
—E-EER-_F-——F-A=TH 62,466
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Contd)

Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved and adopted on 5th December
2002, the Board of Directors of the Company may offer eligible employees
(including Executive Directors) rights to subscribe for shares of the Company
(the “Share Options”). Movements in the number of Share Options

outstanding during the year are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

27 BARRARRE (&)
BRESE

BE-_FZ-_F+_-_FAREAHETES
ZERERNE  RXARZESEAMA
EREE (BEWTES) KRERBAL
AR 2 ER ([BRE]) - RAFEER
Rz BREZHNOT

Number of shares

subject to the Share Options

BRETRBREY
2011 2010
At begininning and at end of the year FONRER 1,500,000 1,500,000

Details of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme outstanding as
at 30th June 2011 and 30th June 2010 are as follows:

R-B——FAA=tBR-F-2F
AAZTRRBEREHEL 2R
ERRAENT :

Number of shares

Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price subject to the Share Options
KRB HHA TEE BRETRBRE
2011 2010
Employees {E & 13th February 2008 [2th February 2014 HK$0.78 1,500,000 1,500,000
“ER/\F-At=A —F-HEF¥-At+=H 0.78% 7T
1,500,000 1,500,000

Options granted are exercisable within a period of six years within which
there is a total vesting period of three years. Commencing from the first,
second and third anniversaries of the offer date of an option, the relevant
grantee may exercise up to 33%, 67% and 100% respectively of the shares
comprised in his or her option. The Group has no legal or constructive

obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The fair value of these options is to be expensed over the vesting period and
the amount recognised for the year was HK$31,000 (2010: HK$92,000).

REBRETNANFATE  MEHE
BREEARBRN=F5EE - BHARA
IREREZOBRNE - F-RF
“BEERMERETEDAAZRAD
Z=t= BOZATERBEHZ—A
MERBRE - AEEY BETERHEE
EENRCEERAERERE -

REBHBYHIREERANHEEE
BEATELFEA3,000ET (ZE—F
£ 1 92,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Cont'd)

Share option scheme (Cont'd)

The fair values of options granted under the share option scheme determined

using the Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

Date of grant of share option

ROBRERS

ﬁﬁjr,

27 REARBRARE (&
BRESE (8

ER-_RANETERAETRERER
BB L BB AFENT

|3th February 2008
—ZETN\F-A+=H

Average fair value of share

options at date of grant

Significant inputs into the valuation model:

Exercise price

Share price at grant date
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate

Expected life of options

Expected dividend yield

R B BRI
2 THATHE

HERAZEXBAZUE

B B R E
I
8 8 2

FBRE 2 RH A A

RER B ER

HK$0.277
0.277 BT

HK$0.78
0.78 BT
HK$0.72
0.72% 7T
66%

1.99%

6 years
64

6%

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price

returns is based on the 6-year historical share price movement of the

Company prior to the option grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBmRME
28 RESERVES 28 fifR
(a) Group (a) &H
Other reserves
L1
Available-for-
Capital sale financial Exchange
Share reserve aSSets reserve fluctuation
option (Note (i)~ Revaluation e reserve Retained
reserve Bk reserve IBEE EX Sub-total earnings Total
RREGE (M2  EfGS B ROER Nt RERA 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&7 & Tin & Tn Tin & Tin
At st Juy 2010 R-Z-FELA-A 384 408 3939 = 2,445 41178 256,041 0327
Poft fo theyear BERH - = - - - - 31716 31,16
Revaluation gain of property, 0% BRRRER
plant and equipment and HETHRLY
leasehold [and and land use EREERERE
rights on transfer to investment Nx RREER
properties - Gross h&-48 - - 1,69 - - 1,69 - 1,69
Defemed tax on revaluation gains 0% BRRRER
of property plant and HELHRLY
equipment and leasehold land FREERERE
and and use ights on transfer EYAEL
to investment propertis Gk ba - - (405) - - (405) - (405)
Revaluzton gai of an avalatleor- ~ AIRENKEE
sale financial asset B[ = = = 4% = 49 - £9
Currency translation differences EiEE = = — — 14815 14815 — 14815
Employees share options scheme: EEERER
- value of employee services -EERKER 3l - - - - ] - 3l
Dividend pid RExf
- 20031010 i -Xf-%%/
dividend paid “3-3%§
KERE - - - - - - (1.384) (7.384)
- 01001 nterim -xfi-%-%
diidend pid JFER
BHRE - - - - - - (3,692) (3692)
At 30th June 2011 RZZ-——£7A=1H 415 408 5,163 49 57,260 63,685 176,681 340366
Representing: fix:
Proposed 20101201 | final dhidend ~~ EF=5-%
55§
ke 39
Others Efg mse
176,681

Annual Report \1 37
FEHRE 10/ 11



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B '
28 RESERVES (Cont'd) 28 f#fE (8
(a) Group (Contd) @ %B#)
Other reserves
AiER
Capital
Share reserve Exchange
option  (Note (i)  Revaluation fluctuation Retained
reserve ARG reserve reserve Sub-total earnings Total
BRERE ()  BRERE EXRDREE Mt RERR B
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Tén  TEn  TEn  Téx Tén  TEr  TER
At Ist July 2009 RZZENELA-H 19 408 2115 4245 45260 2132209 277489
Proft for the year RERH — - - - — 2835 2835
Revaluation gains of property, plant ER
and equipment and leasehold RETHRLH
land and land use rights on EREERE
transfer to investment RENZZ
properties - Gross EfEhE-£8 - - 2602 — 2602 — 2602
Deferred tax on revaluation gains % BERZ
of property, plant and equipment EHETHR
and leasehold land and land use THEREEE
rights on transfer to investment EREMF 2 Ef
properties YalHz BIERE — - (778) — (178) — (178)
Employees share options scheme: EEBRENE
~ value of employee services -EERHKEE 9 - - - 9 = 9
Dividend paid eS|
- 200912010 inerim -Xf-%%N/2%-%
dividend paid ERRARE - - - — — (3692) (3692)
Acquistion of additional & -MERA
interests in a subsidiary LEMER — — — — — (848) (848)
At 30th June 2010 RZE-F£:A=-1H 384 408 3939 4445 47176 256,041 303217
Representing: % :
Proposed 2009/2010 fial dividend BE-TEN/
“R-RERRHRE 7384
Others ify 2148657
256,041
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRMEE
28 RESERVES (Cont'd) 28 f&fl (&)
(b) Company (b) A7
Other reserves
Rftfhte
Contributed
surplus
(Note (ii)) Share option Retained
EdEs reserve Sub-total earnings Total
(W & i) BRERS it REEA ag
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
At Ist July 2010 RZZ-FE+A-H 62511 384 62,895 8,995 71,890
Profit for the year RERHN - - — 6,681 6,681
Employee share options scheme: EEBRENS
- value of employee services -EERBER = 3 3l — 3l
200912010 final dividend paid ¥H-2Fh/
“E-TEERERE - - - (7,384) (7,384)
20101201 | interim dividend paid ¥H-%-%/
“R—ERPHRE - - - (3,692) (3.692)
At 30th June 201 RZF-—F~A=+A 62511 415 62,926 4,600 67,526
Representing: % :
Proposed 20101201 | final dividend Ba-2-%
“B—FRERHRE 3,692
Others At 908
4,600
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REMBRRMEE

28 RESERVES (Cont'd)
(b) Company (Contd)

28 f#fE (@

Other reserves

(o) AR (&)

Hibh
Contributed
surplus
(Note (ii)) Share option Retained
EaRs reserve Sub-total earnings Total
(W()  BRERE It &R R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEn TiEn TiEn
At It July 2009 RZZZNELA-H 62511 9 62,803 5898 68701
Proft for the year AERH - - — 6,789 6,789
Employee share options scheme: EERRENE:
- value of employee services -EERKER = 92 92 — 9
2009/2010 interim dividend paid ZHZ2EN/
“E-ZEEPHRE - - - (3.692) (3692)
At 30th June 2010 RZE-FF7XA=+H 62511 384 62,895 8995 7189
Representing: K&
Proposed 2009/2010 final dividend BE-TEIN/
“F-FRERMRE 7,384
Others Efth 1611
8,995
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28 RESERVES (Contd)

Notes:

0)

Capital reserve of the Group of HK$408,000 (2010: HK$408,000) represents the
aggregate amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited and the difference between the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation

in 1994 (the “Reorganisation”).

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders' funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the

underlying subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

28 f#fk (&)
ffsE -

i) X £ B 2 & X & & #
408,000% 7T (ZZ —ZF : 408,000/
) DREBBREHMERD A 2 BRE
BEEROBERR—AATNELRDF
BEEEEA((EA]) BT 2RAR
BEURBRERBAR 2 RAEER
BRE LA

(i) ARAZEHRH  JINgai Hing
(International) Company Limited 7 &
HEBAHZEERREEREANAR
BEAMET/ROEBERME 2 ZHE -
AEEZERRBRIEHBAGHENE
NEZHEEHEER -

REARE-NAN-FRAZEEE
i) BEHABKUIRTRE - BHEF
BEERAE ()2 AR KRS AE
ERDKEREIBEBELINH A
& R AREEZEHRBEEHE
MEREAERACBIBRAERN &
Bzl ARARATRERIENK
BELEFBRTEHRDIR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

K
=

29 BORROWINGS 29 f8E
Group
£
As at As at As at
30th June 30th June I'st July
2011 2010 2009
R=B——F R-T-FTF RTENF
RA=1H ANA=+H +A—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR TET
(Restated)
(Z31)
Obligations under finance leases MEHEEME 235 693 2,740
Less: Obligations under finance B RAMEEEE
lease - current portion — BNERER 15 (235) (458) (2,047)
— 235 693
Current borrowings mEEE
Bank loans due for repayment %EA—EWE%Z
within one year-secured RITER-FHER 52,316 35,105 40,987
Bank loans due for repayment after BN ¢1§i1§ REBER
one year which contain a repayment KETZETM%XZ
on demand clause-secured RIT —FER 19,767 15,600 —
Trust receipt loans due for repayment ﬁﬁ(‘\—i WE BT
within one year-secured WE B — A i 265,382 199,54 | 55,469
Bank advances for discounted RITHRRBEDN
bills (Note 23) (B¥&E 23) 3,883 2,285 2515
Bank overdrafts, secured RITEX - BEA 2,593 — —
343,941 252,531 98,971
Obligations under finance MEMEEE MBS
leases - current portion 235 458 2,047
344,176 252,989 101,018
Total borrowings BEE 344,176 253224 101,711
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. .._‘| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
L GOMBERME

29 BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 29 B8 #®
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values, AEEEEZRAEREATERS
and is denominated in the following currencies: WIATFIEEREL -
Group
£F
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
HK dollar BT 280,982 207,692
Renminbi AR 50,787 19,330
US dollar XL 9,017 26,202
Euro BT 3,390 —
344,176 253,224
At 30th June 2011, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable R-ZZE——FXA=+TH AEENR
within five years. TEFHERAFAEE -
The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out in the BEEFHABGREREFEXTE
loan agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause are as BRERGERE EREESENT
follows:
Bank borrowings
BITEE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Within | year —FR 324,174 236,93
Between | to 2 years —FEWF 3,664 4,800
Between 2 to 5 years MEERF 16,103 10,800
343,941 252,531

Annual Report \1 43
FEHRE 10/ 11



144/

29 BORROWINGS (Contd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEUBHRTRMEE

The Group's finance lease obligations are analysed as follows:

29 68 (®
REBZBEREEESINMT -

Finance lease obligations

MEEEER
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Total minimum lease payments RIEHEERE

Within | year —&FRQ 237 473
Between | to 2 years —FEWF — 236
237 709
Future finance charges on finance leases MEMEZRRIBER (2) (16)
Present value of obligations under finance leases MEREEE 2R E 235 693

The present value of obligations under finance leases is as follows: EMEERECRAENT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FTET
Within | year —fFR 235 458
Between | to 2 years —EFEMF — 235
235 693
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FEMBRRME
29 BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 29 B8 #®
The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the REERBERAAEEZEREMEE
weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows: BHER R METSFEQNT -
Group
£F
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAET
- at fixed rates —BEME 328,341 232,131
- at floating rates —Z BRI K 15,835 21,093
344,176 253,224
2011 2010
HKS RMB usb EUR HKS RMB UsD EUR

v ARH £ B B N 0 R

Obligations under finance leases BB EE 3.00% — — — 3.00% — = =
Trust receipt loans ERUBEER 1.95% = 2.05% = 199% — 205% —
Short-term and long-term bank loans #2 Hf &EHH

RITER |.84% 831% — 2.66% [.78% 6.31% 23%% =
Bank advances for discounted bils ~ $RTTRRIR RIBE K = 8.71% — — = 5.00% — —
Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note BIETNAEERINDE  BE KX
16), leasehold land and land use rights (Note |7) and investment properties FfE (s 16) ~ ME LR L AR
(Note 18) of the Group. (MIEE17) RIRE 3% (M7E18) RIEHA -
The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted for MEREZRRARERE FTRITME
as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bills receivable and the related RTBREINREREHRITER - 1
proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills BEAGBRAULSRAZTRERNFRL
receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings respectively at the balance REMERAANEERAEEZE SR
sheet date. WO Rk ik (B 5E23) REHIE S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

30 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary differences

under the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following

amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance

-
N
il i .

o
"

30 EEBE
EERERLEANEEACRARE
ELERMOBRENARENEREZR

| AA
=B o
ol 7+

EEAENRTENBAAHAEAER
AERRAGERE BEEMEHRIR
Fl— WA - AR BETHEREE
HaEEEEH - EFABEERR

sheet: TIEeEREERBRRATIER
Group
%8
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Deferred tax assets BEREEE (5,988) (4,486)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMEAE 8,107 5241
2,119 755

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

ERREMGEHERNZEHMT

Group

&8
2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
TR FET
At beginning of the year =) 755 (4,231)
Charged to equity TR =M 405 778

Charged to consolidated ERaWa&F R

income statement (Note |0) (HtEE10) 1,034 4,208
Exchange difference ERERE (75) —
At end of the year ER 2,119 755
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30 DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

30 EEDHIE (B

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without FRNEEHEEERAGE2Z ) (EE—
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax B R 2 &R AT I T
jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities: BERIEAE :
Fair value gains on Accelerated
investment properties tax depreciation Total
REMELVEURS nERFHE #R
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEn TR TEn TETL
At beginning of the year 4 3,406 2,537 2,264 1,679 5,670 4216
Charged to equity i Eagills 405 778 - — 405 778
Charged to EWsEk
income statement ks 466 309 2,806 367 3272 676
Transfer B (1,018) (218) 1,018 218 — —
Exchange difference ERER = = 25 = 25 =
At end of the year EX 3,259 3,406 6,113 2,264 9,372 5670
Deferred tax assets: BREHIARE -
Decelerated
Provisions Tax losses tax depreciation Total
R HBER RERHTE ag
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKF000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000
Té#r ThEr TER TExr TEx TEr TET  TER
At beginning of the year 4 1,946 2,245 250 2972 2,719 3230 4915 8,447
Credited/(charged) to ik
income statement A/ (H08) 342 (299) 1,698 (2722) 198 GI) 2238 (3532)
Exchange difference ERZR 34 — — — 66 100 =
At end of the year EX 2322 1,946 1,948 250 2,983 2719 7,253 4915
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

30 DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. At 30th June 201 I, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be
carried forward against future taxable income amounted to HK$62,183,000
(2010: HK$63,844,000). These tax losses have no expiry date except that
HK$9,184,000 (2010: HK$7,355,000) will expire from 2013 to 2016. The
potential deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which have not

been recognised amounted to HK$9,047,000 (2010: HK$10,934,000).

As at 30th June 2011, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to profits earned by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$57,008,000 (2010: HK$35,062,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

At 30th June 2011 and 2010, the Company had no material deferred tax assets

or liabilities.
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30 EEBE (@)

BB HBEEMBERETHEH
BEERREB o BBMNAAAEER
ARERABRBAERODD - RZT—
—FRAZTH AEEUERALE
DEBARERBUENHBEER
62,183,000 © (= T — T &
63,844,000% L) BARLE A ERE E
9,047,000% T ( = 2 - F
10,934,000 L) - HZE—=FZE=
T /\EE‘JHJ%E’HRVJ%?E?% 184,00078
TL(ZZE—ZF : 7,355,00087T) °

k]

A

R-ZZE——F X A=1+H "EETX
RETHHEMBARZERIUEFED
57,008,000 = (= T — T F
35,062,000/ 7T) 2 B ERBERLENIE
B AAKEZHZEEREELZ
BOERE URRATRZHRZELR
EEA g gD o

R-2-FER-F——F~A=+
B AAFYEEAREHALESS
ff -



m.u__‘—’i'r Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMTERERMEE

31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 31 RERERER
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash used in operations: (a) BRUAMENELLEERERACLRE
REK
Group
&8
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET
(Restated)
(Z3)
Profit before income tax 754 A A 46,342 47,694
Adjustments for: HEIER
— Depreciation of property, W% BERRERTE
plant and equipment 13,951 14,689
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —-HEWE BEERREZ
plant and equipment (Wz) /BB (55) 400
— Amortisation of leasehold land and —MHE T o + i (h AR 5
land use rights 384 369
— Amortisation of intangible assets —BEESE = 400
— Unrealised fair value (gain)/loss on —-REEEMESRIACZKRER
derivative financial instruments ATE (W) BB
held for trading (2,700) 637
— Fair value gains on investment - REMEN L TFERS
properties (3,093) (1,422)
— Share of loss of an associated company — 2 #EHt & AR EE D 184 —
— Impairment of goodwill —BEREE 18 —
— Share-based compensation expenses - UERHRERNHEER 31 92
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment ~ — & 2 RIFURE £
of trade receivables B/ (BE) 67 (287)
— (Reversal of)/provision for impairment ~ —FEREERE (BE) HBE
of inventories (87) 654
— Impairment of available-for-sale — At E B EERE
financial asset — 160
— Write-back of other payables — E i Uy 2 — (2,000)
— Impairment of intangible assets —EVEERE = 2,000
— Interest income —FEWA (239) (254)
— Interest expense —FEXH 7,614 3,738
— Exchange differences —EXERE 8,883 =
Changes in working capital: LEECHEE
— Inventories -7FE& (51,381) (122,895)
~Trade and bills receivables, other —EIRKRREERER
receivables, prepayments Hith R - TR
and deposits kize (35,236) (81,565)
— Trade payables, other payables and —BHRNR - AR
deposits received and accruals BERFTeRERER 1,756 39,532
Cash used in operations REEBERAZRS (13,561) (98,058)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEUBHRTRMEE

31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of

rm

31 BERERER (B
ERAREREXRA  HEME

(b)

property, plant and equipment comprise: W R EHRERELE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TEL
Net book amount (Note |6) BREVFE (M 16) 190 650
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BERR
plant and equipment (Note 8) 2w (B8) (MisEs) 55 (400)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment RiBEN 245 250
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

©

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 6th July 2010, the Group acquired 50% interest in EMAA Logistics
(Hong Kong) Limited (“EMAA Logistics”) with a consideration of
HK$5,000 in cash. EMAA Logistics is engaged in the provision of logistics

services.

On 27th June 201 |, the Group acquired a further 5% interests in EMAA
Logistics with a consideration of HK$500 in cash and obtained the
control of EMAA Logistics.

The net liabilities assumed and the relevant goodwill arising are as

31

"e

(©)

FEMBRRME

RERER (B)
ek — BB 2 A

RZZE—TFtLAXA  AEEMN
50008 TH & WERSYT (B4)
BRAR ((BEYR) GA2hti#
w o BEUREERMMRRE -
R-ZE——&XA-++H £&&
BAS00ETReE-—FKEES
MRBA htEm  UVEUSEEY
T2 R4 o

AEFAGERMELRRBEM

follows: g
HK$’000
TER
Purchase consideration, paid in cash UREZ M2 WERE (n
Fair value of equity interest in EMAA BEMRIERBE QTR
Logistics held as an associated HAENERRTE
company 180
Total consideration BRE 179
Fair value of identifiable assets ABREERMAEER
acquired and liabilities assumed: RFE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB R&E 212
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H th & IR 1,958
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEH 94
Trade and other payables B REMERT (2,622)
(358)
Non-controlling interests (based on etz (REBRSYR
proportionate share of EMAA Logistics's KA 3 5l /5 8 &%
identifiable net liabilities) LBl D EES) 161
Fair value of net liabilities assumed FiAEFaELATE (197)
Goodwill (Note) EERGES 18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd)

©

31 &E

- ™

i

REREXR ()

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Cont'd) (c) WE-WBAR (&)
Note: BIsE -
Goodwill arising from acquisition of HK$18,000 is mainly attributable to PAREE FTEE A 2 7818,0007%8 T AU EE
workforce experience. However, due to keen competition in the logistics industry, LEER KR - BEERRITER
the goodwill was fully impaired as at 30th June 201 I. BT BEEEERZ——51A
=THE2HRE -
Net cash inflow for acquisition of a subsidiary: WRE-MBRAVERERA
HK$°000
TER
Consideration - Cash RerE ("
Cash and cash equivalents in BB ARNERE R
a subsidiary acquired ReER 94
93
The revenues and results contributed by EMAA Logistics to the Group REBE_Z-——FX A=THILF
for the year ended 30th June 2011 since the date of acquisition, B BRERERSMRHARE
individually or in aggregate, are relatively insignificant to the Group. The Bl R REEREH T REX -
Group’s revenues and profit for the year ended 30th June 201 | would WEERBR-F-FFLA—H
not be materially different if all the acquisition had occurred on | July BE-AREARBE-F R
2010 A=+ B 1% & s BRI
ECEVNGE K
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and (d) HEeHeRERME  He kR

cash equivalents include the following:

SERAEATEA -

2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000

TR FTET

Cash and bank balances (Note 25) Re KR &R (T 5E25) 95,826 82,589
Bank overdrafts (Note 29) RITEX (T 529) (2,593) —
93,233 82,589
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32 COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital commitments

At 30th June 201 |, the Group had the following capital commitments for
addition of property, plant and equipment:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

32 A&
(a) BEAAE

R-T——FXA=TH ~&H
BEYE BERRBIENAE

W :
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRREL — —
Contracted but not provided for BEAERERE 7,360 7,385
7,360 7,385

Commitment under operating leases

As at 30th June 2011, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings as follows:

(b) BEHEEAE

RZT——FXA=TH  F~&H
AERTIISRE2 S AR RE
FIAUBHELEHE L RARKED

HEMR :

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Not later than one year —FR 5,400 8,972
Later than one year and not later —FREEBREF

than five years 3,548 1,845

Later than five years ik 32 —

8,980 10,817
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

33

34

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The
remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares
of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the

Company.

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group
and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note I5 to the

financial statements.

The Directors are of the opinion that no other material related party

transactions had been undertaken by the Group during the year.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.
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34

Ndl®
—

FREALRS

A% E [ Good Benefit Limited (£ 58

BABESIMK L2 AR EH - HEHEA

ADRIBAZETZE=RE  E#h 2
BAZHT A BLREREZRE -

Good Benefit LimitedE& + A 59 I
AAARIZBAESERFE ©

ARAMBESHRARAKEZER

EEAE HEMHFMO NG A M KR
RETE15RE o
EERAAEEARAFEANTELEH
MEREEEALRS

RAERAT

%%WL\BJ$ j%%@*@ﬁi@ﬂz%GOOd
Benefit Limited (T35 B 2 Bf &L A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 201 I:

Place of
incorporation/

operation and

Issued and

fully paid

FEMBRRME

35 FEMEALF
RZZE——5XA=TH FREZE
EMBRAAMT :

Effective

percentage of

*kind of legal up share capital/ equity held by

entity registered capital the Company

Name AR S B ERTR Principal activities VNG ]

=L K& AR BRRA/TRMER FEXRE ZEBRRFEDH

Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands Us$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited RERUHEE 100 %7T REER

(Note b) (K& b)

Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$93,200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign 93,200,000 /7 colorants and compounded
REREER R -owned enterprise plastic resins
BRAT HE BERHEEECAR
IEEELR 2B AR

Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000  Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited N ordinary shares  colorants and compounded
BAEEXERAA of HK$ I each plastic resins
500,000 & &% REREEECHR
BR1ET BB ARSI

Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture of 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited B ordinary shares of engineering plastic
RETREHBRAT HK$! each products
2,000,000 % Az SETR
BR1ET BREM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Place of
incorporation/

operation and

Issued and

fully paid

35 FEMBLF @

Effective

percentage of

*kind of legal up share capital/ equity held by
entity registered capital the Company
Name AR BRTR Principal activities VNGRS ]
=L R*EANER BRRA/ZMES FEXRE ZEBRFED L
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited B ordinary shares of property holding
REZBRMAERDA HKS$ ! each REZRR
1,000 & &M BEME
BR1ET
500,000
non-voting deferred
shares of HK$| each (Note ¢)
500,000 &R F 1
EXBRER1ET
(FtzEe)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) B ordinary shares of BEBRBREHR
Limited HKS$ | each
REBBRH (B8) 500,000 EEBER 1 AT
BRRA
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Matenials Co., Ltd. * wholly foreign 34,400,000 7C  colorants and compounded
HEREBR R -owned enterprise plastic resins
BRATA PE BERHEEEH
HEBELE k&G &k
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and sale of 100

Materials Co., Ltd.
EERBEBBRE
BRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMFPEHRFRMEE

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

35 FENBAR (&

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Effective
operation and fully paid percentage of
*kind of legal up share capital/ equity held by
entity registered capital the Company
Name AR S B ERTR Principal activities VNG ]
=L K& AR BRRA/TRMER FEXRE ZEBRRFEDH
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
REAEERAA BB ordinary shares of plastic products
HK$! each B2ER
5,000 &AMk HEBBEM
BR1ET
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC US$200,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastic (Shanghai) Co, Ltd. ~ * wholly foreign 200,000 & 7T plastic products
RETRREH -owned enterprise BEETRYBEMR
(L&) BRAT P E
I EBELF
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing The PRC US$100,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 100,000 7T compounded plastic resins
EEREHE -owned enterprise BEEEH
BRAT HE REGBE K
IEEELR
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic ~ Hong Kong 1,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
(Hong Kong) Limited N ordinary shares of plastic products
RETREN (BE) HK$| each EETREBER
BRAF 1,000,000 &3@M
BR1ET
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 200000 7T colorants and compounded

CGECHES i
BRAT

-owned enterprise
hE
NEBELE

plastic resins
BENHEECAR
BB AKEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Place of

35 FEMBLF @

incorporation/ Issued and Effective
operation and fully paid percentage of
*kind of legal up share capital/ equity held by
entity registered capital the Company
Name AR BRTR Principal activities VNGRS ]
=L R*EANER BRRA/ZMES FEXRE ZEBRFED L
Guangzhou Ngai Sog The PRC RMB5,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Hing Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 5,000,000 A R & ERRBRY
BNTRERE S -owned enterprise
BRRA e
HEBERE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 400,000 % 7T EEBBRY
LEREERER -owned enterprise
RRBERRAR hE
SNEBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Hong Kong 10,000 Manufacture and sale of 85
Company Limited 9 ordinary shares of biodegradable plastic
RERREHERAA] HKS$! each materials
10,000 & B RERHE
BR1ET RIRBRB R
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastic (Dongguan) Co,, Ltd.  * wholly foreign 8,000,000 /& 7T plastic products
ReRITIRBE -owned enterprise BETRZBER
BERRA e
IEBELE
Shanghai Coltec Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 200,000 7T compounded plastic resins

LiEEEEH
g5ERAT

158/ Annual Report
FEHRE 10/ 11

-owned enterprise
P E
NEBELE

EEEEAR
& EA i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMFPEHRFRMEE

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

35 FENBAR (&

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Effective
operation and fully paid percentage of
*kind of legal up share capital/ equity held by
entity registered capital the Company
Name AR S B ERTR Principal activities VNG ]
=L K& AR BRRA/TRMER FEXRE ZEBRRFEDH
Dongguan Coltec Plastic The PRC HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 3,000,000 # T compounded plastic resins
REBAEEH -owned enterprise BEZEER
BSERDA hE 26 A K
IEBELE
NHH Worldwide Logistics Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Investment holding 84
Limited Bk shares of HK$!| each REER
RERRMABRAF] 1,000,000 &3@M
BR1ET
EMAA Logistics Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary  Provision of logistics services 46.2
(Hong Kong) Limited B shares of HK$| each R RS

BEWR (%) BRAR

10,000 & @M
BR1ET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZEMEHRFRMEE

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Notes:

(@)

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability
companies. All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned

enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by
the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the
Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or
surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or
attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of

such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the
holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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MERBEERRBRABESEMALL
MEAREAERAERR - AAERF
Bz MBARIDRIEEELE -

FrE L5 2 EZ K82 ABRNgai Hing
(International) Company Limited i 7
ARABEERAI  URARRBER
o

REZBRHMERAR ([RE]) BRR
BRERNZBAAERZERRE G
MARNBREEDK  MERREFELZ
EERDUBRREBRASBERLE
BEBRRAEINEGLRR -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR & @R B4E TR ERRA
BEEROFRARLAITBEZERNG 2
BRE

ITRIMEERRE L FRRABNE
EVEIBKASEEEFHEC T B
NZARFWBAR - EERRWHT
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The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years

Five Year Financial Summary
AEMBBME

AEERBELAMBEEESF L RE  BE

are as follows: REBEWT :
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FAT FET FHT
Results ES
Profit/(loss) attributable NARR N
to equity holders of wAl (B8)
the Company 31,716 28,352 (20,757) 24,193 14975
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Total assets BERE 948,748 812,944 592,040 764431 712,049
Total liabilities BERE (486,470)  (389,510)  (195817)  (346327) (352,984
Non-controlling interests e p (22,526) (20,831) (19,348) (17,397) (7,444)
Capital and reserves NG &
attributable to the e A K R
Company’s equity holders 439,752 402,603 376,875 400,707 351,621
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Company Directory
ABER

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited
NHH Coltec Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Company Limited

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
|0 Wo Shing Street,

Fotan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

No. 9 Dai Shun Street,

Tai Po Industrial Estate,

Tai Po, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
Fax: (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

Dongguan Factory:

Chi Ling Industrial Zone, Hou Jie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-8558 8755 Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-8558 1756

Guangzhou Office:

A1806, Center Plaza,

No. 163 Linhe Road West,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 20-3831 0226  Zip : 510620
Fax: (86) 20-3831 0223
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RETERAF
(REREFMHLZ AR R E)
REBBEH (FE)ARAA
REEERRAT
RETRENARAT
RETREN (FR)ARLXA
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BEBMERE:

NG

RN K

R 058
BEIXDL6EIE

T ¢ (852) 2693 1663

fEE : (852) 2694 0877

B4 ¢ http/lwww.nhh.com.hk
EF B ¢ info@nhh.com.hk

BRI

BB

R K

ABTEW

KIEH95%

F+E 1 (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
EH 1 (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

RERIL
hEAREME
BR4A

RBem
EHEBEFRETER

B iE ¢ (86) 769-8558 8755 EERMRHE ¢ 523940

EE : (86) 769-8558 1756
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BMH

X &

MM 1635

F B EHAI806

E 3% ¢ (86) 20-3831 0226 BEURSE 1 510620

EE : (86) 20-3831 0223
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Shanghai Office:

Unit E, 16th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No.1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200235
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.

Qingpu Industrial Zone,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201700
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,

Jiaozhou, ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: (86) 532-8727 3100 Zip: 266300
Fax: (86) 532-8727 3110

Chengdu Office:

2nd Floor, Huaxia Building,

No.3 North Jianshe Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026  Zip: 610051
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

[/F, )-7 Building, Yongquan Industrial Park,
Guankou Town, Jimei District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 592-6093211  Zip: 361023
Fax: (86) 592-6093600

Company Directory
ABER

LEREE

R AR AME

Lam

1L 78 B 1 80057

KERHAE

| 6IEERE

B 3E ¢ (86) 21-6440 0997 BEARSR 1 200235
BE : (86) 21-6440 0977

LB

hE AR LME

Lgm

EHIXER

#2 )%= A HE 8 1005%

EiE 0 (86) 21-6921 3333 BHEESR 201700
BE : (86) 21-6921 5555

ESHIL

FEARLME

EEBMEERMRAER

BR (BN ERIXR

FiE ¢ (86) 532-8727 3100 EBEURSE ¢ 266300
BE : (86) 532-8727 3110

REREE :

HREARANE

m)11& B &

BRIBE=ZBE=5%

EEAECE

B ih 1 (86) 28-8328 5026 EHURSE ¢ 61005
BE : (86) 28-8328 5126

B

hEAREME

BREEMM

SXEENE

BRIER-TBE (118)

B iE ¢ (86) 592-609321 1 BEURS ¢ 361023
BE : (86) 592-6093600
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Company Directory
ABER

Tianjin Office:

Room 1616, No. 349 Nanjing Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 22-8752 8026  Zip: 300073
Fax: (86) 22-8752 8109
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Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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